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IN DE PENDENT AUDITOR'5 REPORT

TO THE MEMBERS OF PAUL MERCHANTS FINANCE PRIVATE LIMITED

Opinion

We have audited the accompanying financrat statements of PAUL MERCHANTS FINANCE PRIVATE LIMITED

("the Company") which comprise the Batance Sheet as at March 31, 2025, the Statement of Profit and Loss

(inctuding Other Comprehensive lncome), the Statement of Changes in Equity and the Statement of Cash

Ftows for the year ended, and notes to financiaI statements inctuding a summary of significant accounting

poticies and other exptanatory information (hereinafter referred to as the " FinanciaI Statements").

ln our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the aforesaid

financial statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013 (the "Act") rn the mannr-.r so

required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the lndian Accounting Standards prescribed under

section 133 of the Act read with the Companies (lndian Accounting Standards) Rutes, 2015, as amended, ("lnd

45") and other accounting principtes generatty accepted in lndia, of the state of affairs of the Company as at

March 31, 2025, the profit and total comprehensive income, changes in equity and its cash ftows for the year

ended on that date.
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Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (SAs) specified under section 143(10)

of the Companies Act, 2013 (the Act). Our responsibitities under those Standards are further described in the

Auditor's Responsibitities for the Audit of the FinanciaI statements section of our report. We are independent

of the Company in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the lnstitute of Chartered Accountants of
lndia together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financiaI statements under

the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and the Rutes thereunder, and we have futfitted our other ethicat
resDonsit'iiities in accordance with tirese requirements and the Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit
cvidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. Our opinion is not
rnodjfied in respect of Ihis matter.
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Management's Responsibility for the Financial Statements

The Company's Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in section 134(5) ot the Act with

respect to the preparation of these financial statements that give a true and fair view of the financiat

position, financiat performance, inctuding other comprehensive income, changes in equity and cash flows of

the Company in accordance with the accounting principtes generatty accepted in lndia, including lndian

Accounting Standards (lnd AS) specified under Section 133 of the Act. This responsibility also inctudes

maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding

of the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting frauds and other irregutarities; setection and

application of appropriate accounting poticies; making judgments and estimates that are reasonabte and

prudent; and design, imptementation and maintenance of adequate internaI financial controls that were

operatinS effectivety for ensuring the accuracy and compteteness of the accounting records, retevant to the

preparation and presentation of the financiat statements that give a true and fair view and are free from

material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

ln preparing the financiat statements, the Board of Directors are responsible for assessing the Company's

abitity to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as appticable, matters related to going concern and using

the going concern basis of accounting unless the Board of Directors either intends to tiquidate the Company

or to cease operations, or has no realistic atternative but to do so.

The Board of Directors are atso responsib[e for overseeing the Company's financiat reporting process.

Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financiat statements as a whote are

free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's report that includes

our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high [eve[ of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted

in accordance with SAs witt atways detect a material misstatement when it exists. i/tisstatements can arise

from fraud or error and are considered materiat if, individuatty or in the aggregate, they coutd reasonabty be

expected to inftuence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financiat statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAS, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional

skepticism throughout the audit. We atso:

ldentify and assess the risks of materiat misstatement of the financiat statements, whether due to
fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit

evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting

a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resutting from error, as fraud
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may invotve cotlusion, forgery, intentionaI omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal

contro[.

Obtain an understanding of internat controt retevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures

that are appropriate in the circumstances and for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the

effectiveness of the company's internal control. Under section 143(3)(i) of the Act we are also

responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the company has adequate internal financial

controts Mth reference to financiat statements in ptace and the operating effectiveness of such

controts.

Evatuate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonabteness of accounting

estimates and related disclosures made by the Board of Directors.

Conctude on the appropriateness of the Board of Directors' use of the going concern basis of

accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists retated

to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company's abitity to continue as a

going concern, lf we conclude that a materiat uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention

in our auditor's report to the retated disctosures in the financial statements or, if such disctosures

are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up

to the date of our auditor's report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Company to

cease to continue as a going concern.

Evatuate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financiat statements, including the

disclosures, and whether the financiat statements represent the undertying transactions and events

in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

Materiatity is the magnitude of misstatements in the standalone financiat statements that individuatty or

in aggregate makes it probable that the economic decisions of a reasonably knowledgeabte user of the

standatone financiat statements may be influenced. We consider quantitative materiatity and qualitative

factors in

(i) ptanning the scope of our audit work and in evatuating the resutts of our work; and

(ii) to evatuate the effect of any identified misstatements in the standatone financiat statements.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the ptanned scope

and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internaI control

that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have comptied with retevant ethicat

requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them att retationships and other matters

that may reasonabty be thought to bear on our independence, T-9{9r" applicabte, related safeguards.
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From the matters communicated with those charged with governance we determine those matters that were

of most significance in the audit of the standatone financial statements of the current period and are

therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor's report unless law or regulation

prectudes pubtic disclosure about the matter or when in extremely rare circumstances we determine that a

matter shoutd not be communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of doing so would

reasonabty be expected to outweigh the pubtic interest benefits of such communication.

Other Matters

a) The Company as wett as its hotding company Pau[ Merchants Finance Pvt Ltd (PMFPL) in their
respective board meetings hetd on February 7, 2025, approved the transfer of Gold Loan Business of
PMFPL (i.e., the business of providing loans against the security of gold to customers in lndia) to L&T
Finance Limited (the Acquirer) by way of a stump sate on a going concern basis, in accordance with
the terms and conditions specified in the Business Transfer Agreement (BTA) dated 07th February
2025. The transaction inctudes the transfer of atl assets, tiabitities, emptoyees, contracts, rights,
obtigations, and goodwitl retated to the Gotd Loan Business Undertaking of PMFPL. As per the
explanations provided to us, the transfer is expected to be completed in the month of June 2025.

Consequentty, in accordance with IND AS 105, the assets and tiabitities of the Gotd Loan Business
have been presented in standalone audited batance sheet for year ended 31st March 2025 separatety
as "Group of assets classified as hetd for sate" and "Group of tiabilities ctassified as held for sate"
respectivety. Further, in accordance with requirement of IND-AS 105, the gotd loan business has been
identified as Discontinued operations and the retated incomes, expenses and pre-tax and post-tax
profit of such operations have been exctuded from the respective incomes, expenses and pre-tax and
post-tax profit of the group in the standalone Audited Statement of Profit and toss for year ended
31st March 2025 and the Pre-tax profit, tax expense and post-tax profit of such discontinued
operations has been disctosed separatety in the statement of profit and [oss. Further, the
corresponding figures for the previous period i.e year ended 31st 

^tarch 
2024 have been restated on

the same basis in the statement of profit and loss as per requirements of lnd AS 105. Further, simitar
changes have atso been made to the consotidated statement of cash ftow forming part of the
accompanying f inanciat statements.

The above remarks are on the basis of exptanations provided to us by the management however our
opinion on the accompanying financiat statements are not quatified to this extent.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

As required by the Companies (Auditor's Report) Order, 2020 ("the Order"), as amended, issued

by the Central Government of lndia in terms of sub-section (1 1) of section 143 of the Act, we

give in the "Annexure A" a statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and4 of the

Order-

I
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Date:26.05.2025

Place: Chandigarh

Based on the representations received by us and audit procedures conducted by us, the company

has paid dividend during the year and the same is in comptiance of Section 123 of Companies

Act, 2013.

For RAJIV GOEL & ASSOCIATES

CHARTE

Firm N

(ROHTT

PARTNER

M. No.091756

UDIN: 25091 756BMUKKI 2773
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(e) The Company is primarity engaged in the lending business and accordingty, the reporting under

ctause 3(iiiXe) of the Order is not applicabte to the Company.

ln our opinion and according to the information and exptanations given to us, the company

has complied with the provisions of section 185 and 186 of the Companies Act, 2013 in respect of

loans, investments, guarantees, and securities as appticabte.

Based on audit procedures performed by us and exptanations received by us, company has issued Non

Convertible debentures to deposit hotders as per applicabte guidelines of the Reserve Bank of lndia.

The provisions of section 73 to 76 of Companies Act 2013 however do not appty to the company as it
is a Non Banking Finance Company. However, as represented to us by the management, it has comptied

with appticab[e guidetines of the RBI white issuing the NCDs. Further, the company has explained that

no order involving it has been passed by the NCLT, CLB or RBI or any other court or any other tribunal.

As informed to us, the maintenance of Cost Records has not been specified by the Centrat

Government under sub-section (1) of Section 148 of the Act, in respect of the activities carried on by

the company.

(a)According to information and exp[anations given to us and on the basis of our examination

of the books of accounts, and records, the Company has been general[y regutar in depositing

undisputed statutory dues inctuding Provident Fund, Employees State lnsurance, Income-Tax, Sates

tax, Service Tax, Duty of Customs, Duty of Excise, Vatue added Tax, Cess and any other statutory

dues with the appropriate authorities. According to the information and explanations given to us, no

undisputed amounts payable in respect of the above were in arrears as at March 31, 7025 for a

period of more than six months from the date on when they become payable.

(b) According to the information and exptanations given to us by the management and those charged

with governance, there are no statutory dues which have not been paid on account of a dispute

except for demand of Rs 97090/ - raised vide order u/s 143(3) of the lncome Tax Act 1961 for Financial

Year Z0Z1-72. As per the documents examined by us and explanation oi the management, the said

demand has arisen due to an error apparent from record and a rectification apptication in this regard

has been preferred with the concerned officer and company is sanguine of resolution at the eartiest.

(f) Basis the information and exptanations provided to us by the management, the Company has not

granted any loans or advances in the nature of loans which are repayable on demand or without

specifying any terms or period of repayment and accordingly, the reporting under clause 3(iiiXf) of

the Order is not applicable to the Company.

a
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According to information and exptanations provided to us, there is no transaction that is not recorded

in the books of account which has been surrendered or disctosed as income during the year in the tax

assessments under the lncome Tax Act, 1961 (43 of 1961).

(a) ln our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company

has not defautted in the repayment of dues to banks or any lender.

(b) ln our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the company

has not been declared wilful defautter by any bank or financial institution or other tender.

(c) ln our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the term

toans of the company have been apptied for the purpose it was taken for.

d) ln our opinion, funds raised for short term purposes are not being utitized for long term purposes.

e) According to information provided to us, the company does not has not have any subsidiaries,

associates or ioint ventures and as such reporting required as per the order regarding receipt from

any entity or person on account of or to meet the obligations of its subsidiaries, associates or joint

ventures is not app[icabte in the present case.

f) According to information shared and explanations given to us, the company does not has not have

any subsidiaries, associates or joint ventures and as such reporting required as per the order

regarding raising of toans during the year on the ptedge of securities held in its subsidiaries, joint

ventures or associate company.

(a) Based upon the audit procedures performed and the information and exptanations given by the

management, the company not raised money by way of initiat pubtic offer or further pubtic offer.

(b) Based upon the audit procedures performed and the information and exptanations given by the

management, the company has raised money by private placement of Non-convertibte debentures

during the year and the retevant requirements of Companies Act 2013 have been complied with and

the funds raised have been used for the purposes as specified in the offer letteB issued to the

debenture holders.

(a) Based on audit procedures performed and information and explanations & representations given

to us by management, no fraud by the company or on the company by its officers or employees has

{.eE\,;ii

xl.

been noticed or reported during the year.

lx.
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(b) Based upon the audit procedures performed and the information and exptanations given by the

management, we report that no report u/s 143(12) of Companies Act 2013 has been fited by the

auditors.

The company is not a Nidhi Company and therefore provisions of Para 3(xii) of the order are not

appticabte to the company.

ln our opinion, a[ transactions with the retated parties are in comptiance with section 177 and

188 of Companies Act, 2013 and the detaits have been disctosed in the Financial Statements

as required by the applicabte accounting standards.

(a) ln our opinion and according to explanations and information received by us, the company has an

internaI audit system commensurate with the size and nature of its business.

(b) The reports of the intemat auditoB for the financiat year were obtained by us from the

management and verified on test check and sampte basis as part of our audit procedures. The findings

as per such reports were considered by us as part of our audit.

ln our Opinion and according to information and explanations provided to us, the company has not

entered into any non-cash transactions as specified in section 192 of the Companies Act 2013 with

directors or persons connected with them during the year, Hence reporting requirement under Clause

3 (xv) of the Order are not applicabte to the Company.

The company is carrying on the business of lending against gotd ornaments as wetl as other loans and

for the said purpose company has obtained Certificate of Registr:tion (COR) from RBI and is registered

under section 45-lA of Reserve Bank of lndia.

Upon examination of the cash flow statement of the company, we have conctuded that the company

had not incurred any cash tosses in the current financiat year and in the immediatety preceding

financial year.

xviii, There has not been any resignation by statutory auditor during the year.

On the basis of the financial ratios, ageing and expected dates of realisation of financiat assets and

payment of financial tiabitities, other information accompanying the financial statements as wetl as

xtx.

(c) As per explanations provided to us by the company, no whistle blower comptaints have been

received by the company during the year.

xtv.
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Date:26.05.2025

Place: Chandigarh

our knowtedge of the Board of Directors and management ptans, no material uncertainty exists as on

the date of the audit report that company is incapabte of meetrng its liabilities existing at the date

of balance sheet as and when they fatt due within a period of one year from the balance sheet date.

We, however, state that this is not an assurance or guarantee as to the future viabitity of the Company

and further state that our reporting is based on the facts up to the date of the audit report as

disclosed to us by the management and not thereafter.

As per information shared with us by the management as welt as per our audit procedures, the

company has duty complied with CSR obtigations and there is no unspent CSR amount at the end of

the year.

The company does not have any subsidiaries/joint ventures/associates and as such reporting as per

the order regarding report of auditors of companies included in consotidated financial statements is

not appticable in this case.

For RAJIV GOEL & ASSOCIATES

CHAR UNTANTS

1 1 '106N

(ROHTT GOEL

PARTNER

M. No.091756

UDIN: 2509 1 7568MUKKJri2773
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Opinion

ln our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, an adequate internal financia] controls

system over financial reporting and such internal financial controls over financial reporting were operating

effectively as at l arch 31,2025, based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established

by the Company considering the essential components of internat controt stated in the Guidance Note on

Audit of lnternal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the lnstitute of Chartered Accountants

of lndia.

For RA.llV GOEL & ASSOCIATES

CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS

Firm . - 011106N

PARTNER

Date:26.05.2025

Place: Chandigarh

M. No. 091756

UDIN: 25091 7568l UKKM2773
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PAUL MERCHAI{T5 TINANCE PR'VAIE LIMIIED
AUDITED CASH fIOW STATEMEIVT AS AT 315f MARCH 2025
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arErrer.d A.@M?ints
FRN 0,r4106N

/,/ n-
.^-Jn*.,
M No.191756
5CO 821.A24, 5€C-iOR ,22A"

iliff 'Ti, q,-,rs suuK(fi 11 1 5

o6t : llao5.t o1t

c uro.t Yo., .r .t 31rt il.Eh 2025

CASH TLOW FROM OPTRATING ACTIVITIES

Crrl,a;ea,r' I

do#,"k-'h-,



PAUI MEROIANTS'INAiICT PRIVAIE IIMTIED

SIAIEMEMT Of OIANGIS tN EQUITY
oN-t,6592tctlZ0l0Prca32462

Amount lRs.in la*hs)

Bala nce . t the besrnninB of the rcpodinE period 3,477.15

Ch.n3e. in eq!ityshare cipit lde to prior P.doder106
Resrared bilane a! the beaiinin€ of thecu.rent reporting period

cha,E6lh equity share c.pitr I durint th. y..r 387.71

B.l.n.e.t the end of the reponlrE p€ri.d 4,264.A6

ad.n8.s in lquitysh-. (+h.l forth. Fr.trdcd !rrt M.rt! 2024

p:nEItr amount lR!.in hrhs)

B.lene.i the bednni.tofthe repoltadt period 3,701.72

Ch.nt6 h equity share .apit! I dlle to pdor pe.iod eror3

R6tated b€lan.. at the bqinni.g of the cu rcnt .epotting Priod
Ch.ntB an equity sh.re c.piB I durin t the ye.r 115.43

salsnce 6 t the end oI the reporti.rg p€iod 3,A77.75

A Eqoity Sf.lt qrtd

cnr8.. h.qutty shsc epirl ior th. t..r.d.d 31n Madr, 202s

Chan8.s in oth.requity forthe year.nd.d 3l M.r.h,2024

SHAIBU GE

(Chair ng Drector) {whole Tim
DIN. 7499

A3 p.rouriepaEt. EporB d.v.n

For Rejiv Go€l & Asso(iat"s
Chartered Ac.ounlants
FRN -011106N

r)

,749, Sector 8,

chandigarh

Chief Financ ial Officer
Membership no 5O2:}OO
r 350,Sec 38A, Chandigarh

DtN 07319125

Puthenpa.am bil, Karipuram,"'I3#"9
CA. Rohit Goel

M. No.091756
s.c.o.823-824
Chandigarh

R!er.sa.d surplur

8,140.04 2,262.46 121-48 23,846.41
B.lance.t th. bed.ning of the @adt.eponint

13,322.43

Ch.ntes in .ccounti.6 policv or p.id p€riod e(o6
Be.t€t.d bal.nceat the be8inning of.urenl

Iot l conp.ehsrve income forthedflent ye.r 4,U2.56 3,706.26\,21171,
s€.urity preftiufr dud rts the yea r 2,093.66 2,O93.56

Remerureftntsol Et defioed beE itplans 5.05 1.26 6.32

8.lah...s on 31{3-2025 15.416.09 t2,ta7.65 3,475.43 573.44 31,552.65

R.s.rv.s and 5urplus

5..urity of N.td.fln.d

S.lance atlhe beSinnint ol ttE ord.nt r.po.tin!
9,135.11 5,985.73 1,651-41 64.21 16,836.46

Ch. nt6 in accountin€ poli.y or F iq p€.iod erors

R6r.r€d balan@ at rhebegimint ofcva€nt

-232.63 -212.63
Iot.lcomp.ehensiE in@me for the cutrent y..r 2,385.45 610.68 51.26 3,053.40
s€curity premium dudng theye.r 4,7a7.31 4,!87 _12

Reme.su.eliehts of ret deiined b€nerit plans 1.49 o.37 1.86
lr.l.ft.6i on 31{t-2024 13,322.43 8,140.04 2,262.$ 121.44 23,8it6.41

Place: chandigarh

Date : 15. 05 - 2-ga5

sHtvAlfi SHARMA

CompanySe.retary
Membership no ACS A46981
l3U6Zm, varun Path, lvlansarovar,

Jaipur 3O202O

uDrx: Ztol\15bGtv\U(ffia11!

B Oth.. Eq'ritY

Ct.na6 in oth.r.quity lor ti. y..r.ndld 3l M.r 2025

,,.1
/,tl-_*^

452.00



NOTE5 ON .INANOAL STATTMENIS FOR THT YTAR ENOED 31'I MARCIi 2025

NOt' 1ICAsH & AANX BALANCE

Dis.onrinu.d op!raions @ntinu.d op.l.iions

18.64 3.42 22.06 41.82

oiscontinu.d op.raions continu.d op.r.tions

12,323lC
s7.6:

1L213 12,435.03
47.42

1.425.t7
107.93

r2,411.12 !t2.7' 12,523.85 1,543.10

2,705 35 233.98 2,939.36 382.50

2,705,38 233.98 2,939,46 332.50

a. C.!h .nd c-fi.quiY.Lnti
B.l.ne *ith benk5 in Cun6tAc@nts

IotalU)
8. Oth.. 8d.n.!s wnh 8.ntt

i) ln Tero Deposit A.courts with > 3 nb.th
..d <12 rcnrhs rutuiry

rot.l(2)

robl(r+2) 15,116.50 446.-tz 75,461.22 1,915_50

--

2!2 0 rl 22-06

19 al 21)

41.37 0.45 41,82

0.45

As at llst Mer2025

Conii.u.d Op.r.tbl|s IOIAL

Adverre iio.n C(Etomds/ Rseal p€ndiq

13.04 :l !,1 13.C.:

13.04 13.04 13. 04

NOI' 6 :CURRENTTN( AsSETS

NOI' 6A: CURRENI TAX LIABIIITIES

Discontinu.d op.rations Co.tinu.d Op.rations

Adv. lEe ]ar & IDS {Ner of P.ovlsiorl for lax)' 56 C5 59 45

58.05 58.05

As at 31st MarZ0Z5

ois.dti.u.d Op.r.tioris Conlinurd Op.ntbns TOIAL
As .t 31n M3r 2024

lnv.!am.nr in Mutud rundsQuot.d n rVIR

IAIALCUDFUNO 1.4o0.5 2 1,0@.52

1,000.52 E

As at 31sl Mar2025

OLconlinu.d op.rrions Contin u. d op...tio.s TOIAT
as n 31st Mar2024

adv. h.e T8x & Tos {Ner d ftoviiid lor T., )' 36.74

36.78

-

s

c

TOIAL

TOTAI
A3 rt 315t M.r1024

L-4.63

Oiscmtinu.d Op.rrions



Note 3 : LOANS

Particulars

TotalAmortised Cost

As at 31 st Mar 2025

Deslrnated at fair
value through profit Subtotal

Through olher
Comprehensive

Through
Pao6t or

Loss

Marimulh Balance durino the vear
i) Gold Loan (includes 10% MRR und€r
Direct Assignment)
ii) Othe. Lo€n
Total (A) - G.oss
Less: lmpairment lo6s allo/rance
Total(Al- tlet

12s,4O0.45
90.00

't,25,490.45

1,25,400.45
90.00

1,25,490.46

1,25,490.45 1,25,490.45

(s)

l) Secured by tangibh assetsGuarantee
r) Gold Loan (nclude6 10% MRR under
Direcl Assignment)
ii) Cth€r Loan
Total(l) -Gross
Less: lmpairrnent l6s allo/rarre
Total (l) - Net

1,25,400.45
40.00

1,25,140.45

1.25.4m.45
40.00

t,26440.45

1.25,440.45 ,,25,440.45

ll)Covered by Bank / Government
Guarantees

lll)Unsecured
i) Other Loan
Total (lll) 'Gross
Less: lmpairment lc6s allarg/arEe
Total (llll - Ner

50.00
50.00

50.00
50.00

50.00 50.00

Total (B) (l+ll+lll) - Net 1,25,490.45 1,25,490.45

(C) (l) Loans in lndia
i) Puuic Secb.
ii) Others
(C) (ll) Loans outside lndia
Total (C) - Gross
Less: lmpairment lo6s allo$ra.Ee
Total (Cl-Net

1 ,25i90!5

1rSr490.45

1,25,490.45

1,25/490.45

1,25,490.45 1,25,490.45

Amortised Cost Subtotal Total

As at 31 March 2024
At Fair Value

Through Other
Comprehensive

lncome

Through
Profit or

Loss

Designated at fair
valle through profit

or loss

lA)
0 Gold L@n
ii) Other L@n
Total(A).G.oss
Less: lmpairment loss allowan6e
Total(A) -Net

95,338.69
262 82

95,601.31

95,338.69

95.601.31

95.601.31 95.601.31

(B)
l) Secured byLngibh assets
0 Gold L.6n
ii) qher Loan
Total(l) -Grors
L6s: lmpakdEnt l6s all6lyarE6
Torat(t) - Net

95.338.69
200 09

95,538.78

95.334.69
2@.09

95,538.78

95,538.78

ll) Covered by Bank / Government
Guarantees

lll) [rnsecured
i) Oth€r Loan
Total (lll) - Grosi
L6s: lmpairment l6s allorvance
Total (lll) - tlel

62.53
62.53

52.53

95,60't.31

52.53
62.53

62.53

95,601.3'lTotal (B) (l+ll+llll - Net

95,601.31

95,601.31

'.;l 95,601.31

(C) {l) Loans in lndia
i) Public Secbr
ii) qhers

lC) (ll) Loans outside lndia
Toral(C) - Gross
Less: lmpairment lo6s alloulanc6
Total(C)'Net

95,501.31

95,601.31

95,601.31

1- RH

Particula.s

95,538.78



Note 7:- Defcrred T.x Lirblllths /Assets
ln lo

As at 31st Mar 2025
Particulars Discontlnu€d

Operrtions ContinuGd Operations
TOTAL

As at 31st Mar 2024

OpeninB Balances
Add: Deferred Tax Asset
Less: Deferred Tax Liability
Less: Transfer to other division

61.40
-61.40

82.53

-!5.25
61.40

82.53

46.15

Total 36.38 36.38 82.53

Dlscontinued Operltions as at 3lst M.r 2025 Cohtinued Operatlong.s at 3lst Mar 2025
curr€nt Y€ar DTA,/(DTL) Prov. As !t 31st M.r

2025

Particulars

Accounting Ba5e Tax Base

Total

DTA/(OTr-) Bal. Accounting Base Tax Bas€ DTA/(DTLI Bal.

continued
Operations

892.43
152.60

55,759.18
89.32
79.43

7,067.97

57,250_50

7.Ar
27.76

-87.90

4.90
1.27

44.18
38.41

-723.66

22.44
19.99

73.08 L42.53 77.44

8.29

9.27

7.80

27.76
-87.90
-2.04
-1.03

0.01

6.94

8.30

57,972.95 58,318.44 1.40 t42.6L 742.53 34.98 '61.40 15.25 -46.15

(Rs. ln h

. ln lokhs)

Discontinu€d Operations !s.t 3lrt Mar 2024 Continued Op€rations as at 31st Mar 2024
Particulars

Accounting Ease Tax Base ora/(Dr[) Bal. Accounting Ease Tax Base DrA/(DrL) Bal.

Fixed Assets
Payable related to Direct Assignment
Bank Borrowings (Term l-oans)

Provision for Gratuity
Provision for Bonus

989.66
56.13

25,rLg.25
97.47
83.51

7,734.23

25,260.34

36.38
16.&

-35.75
24.52
27.O2

704.O7

5.36
3.61

773.47 77.47

1.35

0.91
26,354.97 26.394.57 62.80 113.05 t73.41 19.73

i 22-As

.1

o

25.15
57.38

Dircontinued
Opeaationt

Fixed Assets
Payable related to Direct Assignment
Bank Borrowings (Term Loans)

Provision for Gratuity
P.ovision for Bonus

32.93
36-59

1._.._



NOTE OA:FIXED ASsETs

Note:-

Grors Block Net Blo(k

31 March 2025
PARTICUTARS Division Balanc. as at

l April2024
Disposals lnlout

Salancc a5 at
1April2024

Dcprlciation

lnlout
Balanr. as at

3l March 2025

Balanc..i.t
31Ma..h 2024

73.08Total 315.39 19.34 17.85 353.57 2t2.31 99,13 8.45 280.49 104.07
34.12Motor Car Continued operations 3r.23% 113.37 713.31 123.16 15.49 r39.25 49.67

3.06Computer & Accessories continu€d operations 63.16% 5.49 11.40 17.79 3.49 4.71 6.G4 14.23 2.00
3.43Office Equipments Continued operataons 25.a9% 0.32 6.05 6.31 0.02 1.10 ').41 2.94 0.30

32.41Continued operations 63.16% 131.21 19.34 156.54 45.04 39.03 124.O7 52.16

892.43Total t,664.27 167.17 6.12 -17.85 1,408.05 574.60 253.35 -3.84 -8.45 915.63 989.66

1a.10% 409.05 361.43Disrontinued operations 604.14 23.64 621.82 195.13 65.26 260.39

Discontinued operations 18. 1 161.14 14.01 121.70 115.85175.15 39.44 19.86 59.30

56.14

Securaty Devicet

Computer & Accesrories Ds(ontinued operations 63.76% ta4.o2 {t.52 11.40 232.74 12a.76 53.88 6.64 176.@ 53.27

11 14Discontinued op€rations 74.10% 21.91 0.56 22.53 9.31 2.02 11.39 12.59

Discontinued operations 25.49% 17.49 220.09 185.21rurniture & Fixture 372.29 134.31 57.77 186 08

34.05Discontinued operations 25.89v.

354.40

61.50 8.62 6-t2 64.00 24.42 9.40 -3.84 29.95 37.08

39.86Air Conditioner Discontinued op€rationg )\.49% 71.41 4.93 a2 34 31.51 10.91 47.44 45.84

o{fi.€ equipments Discontinued operations 25.49% 51.72 8.99 -6.05 30.40 ,9.0554.66 21.32 6.11 l.a1 25.61

52.10Discontinued operations 63.1.6% 741.94 28.60 176.54 90.29 34.14 124.43 51.64

965.51G RAN D TOTAI. 1,980.65 187,10 6.t2 2,161.63 886.92 313.08 -3.88 t,796.12 1,093,74

IntanSrb lc Ass.ti Und.t

-

The Company has charged depreciation on Property, Plant and Equipment and lntangible Assets related to the Gold Divhion up to 6th Februarv 2025, in accordance with lnd AS 105 -
"Non-Current Assets Held for Sale and Di5continued Operations,"

costs to sell. Fair value has been considered equivalent to the carrying amount based on manage
discontinued from the date they wer€ classified as held for sale,

nt dnd tsc ioet n I: rtu hnte depreciation on such assets has been

ti ---.t tt I tt I

--__-r-_-|--

tt
ttttl



Note 9: capital Work in Progress

Discontiued operations
As at 31st March, 2025

More than 3 Years TotalAssets Under Development Less than l year 1-Z Years 2-3 Years

lntangible Assets

Projects in progress

Projects Temporarily suspended

Overdue Projects

Projects Exceeded Budgetary Cost

Total
CWIP

4.98Projects in progress 4.98

Projects Temporarily suspended

Overdue Projects
Projects Exceeded Budgetary Cost

Total 4.984.98
Gross Total 4.98 4.98

I

(Rs. tn lokhs)

(Rs. ln lakhs)

As at 31st March, 2024
Assets Under Development Less than 1 year 1-2 Years 2-3 Years More than 3 Years Total
lnta ngible Assets
Projects in progress

Projects Temporarily suspended
Overdue Projects

Projects Exceeded Budgetary Cost

Total
CWIP

Projects in progress 25.25 25.2s
Projects Temporarily suspended
Overdue Projects

Projects Exceeded Budgetary Cost

Total 2s.2s 2s.2s
Gross Total 23.2s 25.25

I sFt

-.tS
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=
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Note 114 Profit/(toss) forthe period from discontinued operations

Amount (in lakhs)

Particulars Note As at 31st March 2025 As at 31st March 2024

(r)

(I)

t.

tv.

v.

VI

v .

v t.

tx

Revenue from Operations

(i) lnterest lncome

(ii) Gain on assignment of financial asset

(iii) Rental lncome

(iv) Fees and commission lncome

Total Revenue from ooerations

Other lncome

Total lncome (l+ll)

Expenses:

(i) Finance Costs

(ii) Employee Benefits Expenses

(iii) Depreciation, amortization and

impairment

(iv) others expenses

(v) csR Expense

Total Expenses (lV)

Profit before exceptional & extraordinary
items & tax (llFlV)

Exceptional ltems

Prior Period ltems

Profit before tax (V-Vl)

Tax Expense:

(1) Current tax

(2) Prior period taxes

(3) Deferred tax

Profit/(l-oss) for the period from
discontinued operations

OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

A(i) ltems that will not be reclassified to
profit or loss-Remeasuremeht Gain(Loss) on

defined employee benefit plans

(iil lncome tax relating to items that will not
be reclassified to profit or loss

B(il ltems that will be reclassified to profit or
loss
ii) lncome tax relating to items that will be

reclassified to profit or loss

18

18

19

20

2L

22

8

23

24

/ sco

la./GA

20,891.68

560.39

16,039.95

84.10

209.06

16,333.11

96.59

2r,981.56 16,429.70

1,327.84

3,879.55

253.35

2,40r.99

s1.03

6,286.45

3,O72.U

264.49

2,292.6r

67.64

71,913.76 11,984.03

8,067.80

8,067.80

59.35

4,445,67

4,4/.5.67

7,LO4.42

-23.06

-37.50

6,058.75 3,401.E1

pr -2.06

2.49

-0.63

x

TOTAI COMPREHENSIVE INCOME FOR THE

PERIOD (Vlll+lxl 6,064.86 3,403.67

371.60

2,-,a21.66

157.90

7,949.70

s



Amount (in lakhs

As at 31st March 2024PARTICULARS As at 31st March 2025

a,075.91

253.35

4,329.32

11.66

-29,889.14
-658.56

-29.47
2,513.83

-28,051.68

-79,722.36

-79,722.36

- 135.85

-1,000.52

-1,136.37

31,700.34

3a7 .7 7

2.093.66

-=; F

i-^^" -\ \eY34,t8L.77

73,322.99 V

B

c.

CASH TLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES

Profit before Tax and Extraordinary items
Adjustment for:
Depreciation

ProfivLoss on sale of Fixed Assets/rwestments
F;nance Cost
lnterest lncome
Dividend Received

Profit before working C.pital Changes

Other Non Current Assets

Short Term Loans & Advanceg

Other Current Assets
Trade Payables

Other Current Liabilities
Other Long Term Liabilities
Short Term Provisions

Long Term Provisions
Cash tenerated from operatlons
lncome Taxes Paid

Cash generated from operation before extraordinary items

Dividend Received

Net Cash flow from operating activities

CASH FLOW FROM LENDING AND INVESTING ACTIVIIES

Fixed Deposited with Banks

lnterest Received on Fixed Deposits

Purchase/Sale of Fixed Assets

lncrease/Decrease in Current lnvestments

lncrease/Decrease in Non Current lnvestments

Net cash used in lending and investing activities

CASH FIOW FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES

lssue ofShare Capital

lncrease in Share premium

Dividend Paid

Eorrowings (Net of Repayments)

Net cash flow from discontinued operations

NotB 11 B

A.

Adiustment for :

Net changes in operatlng Assets & Liabilities

Trade receiva ble
lnventory

tong Term Loans & Advances

Other Current Asrets

:",.,



oisco.tinu.d op.raions Continu.d OFGtion. IOTAT

SEuhy.d Anount R€f dd!ble

Les: ProYiiion on adErc6
Iot l

215.41

911.21
120.6,

12.89

3.70
49.10

8.06
432.91

45.52

2t9_11

950.31
t24.71
445.41
45.52

!23.94
376.63

124.09
151.91

1,260.17 448.27 1,708.44 980.59

NOIE 1O: OTHtn NON fINANcIALAS5EI5

Ar n 31st Mar2025

Ois.onti.u.d op.rnions contiou.d op.r.tbnt TOIAI

Trade P.y. U.-MSME
rrad€ Pay.U._ Othss

29,63
6.21

1.59

11-17

11.22

19.54

44.C8

70.92

35,84 14.96 50_80 114.99

Not r2 :TRAOE PAYABIEAGEING

NOII 12 : FINANCIAL UABIUTIE9. OIHER PAYABLES

NOt' 13 : NON,CONVERIIDT! DTEENTUNES

Discontinu.d Oplraions @ntinu.d op.r.tions

N@{6vertible Oebsture5 709.00 7C9 00 709.00

709.00 709.00 709.00

Nore 15: PflovtstoNs

as.rllst M.r 2025

(ilM5ME (U ndirplted)
{ai) ot}EE (U ndisputed}
(iii) Dlsput.d Ou6 ' MSrrE

{iv) DisoJted 0€s - Othss

31.22

14.50 0.29 0.11

iror! th.n 3 y.lr!

o_64

3L.ZZ

19.5E

49,11 0.29 0.11 0.58 50.E0

I

(i) MsME {Undisp!ted}
(ii) ott€ts (Undarputed)

(iiilDi5puted Du6 - M9\/lE
(iv)Di5pot€d Dltr - Oth6

44-08

52.74 L7.46

Mor. th.n 3 y.{s

o.6a

44,04

70.92

96.85 17.46 0.58 114,9'

At a llst Mar2025

TOTAI

Etpe.sca.d orhe. P.yabb
lnteBt payabl€ o.! NcD

5,a3652

799.24

304.55

130.0O

11.98

5966.52
11.98

199.24

312.19

3,502.33

13.41

17.55

242.40

6,340.31 149.62 6,449.92 3,915.70

Ar rt 3lrt M.rZo25

Disconrinu.d op.r&ions cootinu.d op.r.tb.t TOTAT

Povision on AdlelE€6
- Prcvision on st..d..d .ss€B lst.rF I & 2)
- Proviilon on NPA (st.ge 3)

89.32

41.48

79.43

,2.91
535

35_59

254.57

197.53

61.14

122.25

46.83

116.02

23!.30
147_43

90.47

L(D.77

4t_15

a7.tz

468.89 74.88 544.71 2t69.34

Disconlinu.d op!.aioB Continu.d op.rations IOTAI

GsT Pay.He

7.99 5.15

15.2!
7,99 1.99 21,46

NOIE 15 :OTBER NON NI,lANCIAI LIABIUTIES

1.99

.330

Discontinu.d op.rations @ntinu.d Op...tbnr

rorar.

PrcvBion for Gr.Mty
Prcvisbn Fo. Le.v. ErEaslvncnt

25E.67

197.53

61.14

4- --
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Note 14: BORROWINGS

As at 31st Mar 2025

Discontinued Operations
A. at 31st Mar 2024

contlnued ope16tions

Total

Panaculars

At Amortlsed
Cost

Amortised Cost
Throu8h Prollt or

Io55
At {alr Value Throuth Prolit

or Loss
Total

At Amortised
Con

At fairValue Through Prolit
ol Loss

Total

22,466.42
9,38 3.64

13,0A2.78

2,651.8:l
1,960.43

591.39

21,999.13
12,299,13
9,700.@

19,715.82

105.50
619.70

18,990.62

66,836.70

3.50
3.50

(b) Losns r€payable on dem.nd
(l) Ircm banks

(a) in lndian Rupee$

(b) foreiSn currencv exposure

(c) Loans Irom related party

loan from Directors and Relatives (Unsecured)
Loa n from fellow subsidarieg
Loan from Hotding Company (Unsecured)

Tolal (A)
Sorrowings in lndie
Borrowings outside lndia
Tor.l(B)

lii) lrom other parties

(iiil Car Loan

{a) Terrn l-oan
(l)from banks

Current Iiebilititet
Non-Current l-iabiliti6

Current Iiabilitites
Non-Current IiabilitieJ

Current Liabilitites
Non-Current Liabiliti6

25,434.36
26,434,36

16,049.00

84.00
955.00

15,@O.00

42,483.35
42,483.35

42,443 36

27p99.L3
t2,299.13
9,7m.00

19,715.82

41,718.45
41,114.45

41,718.45

3.50
3.50

118.25

22,466,42
9,383.54

13,082.78

2,651.&t
1,9@.43

691.39

25,Lla.2S
25,118.25

56,759.18

49,97 a.7S

49,97a.75

6,780.43
6,780.43

s6,759.18
56,759.18

49,97A.75
49,978.75

26,434.36
26,434.36

16,O49.00

84.m
965.00

15,mO.@

99,242-54
99,242.54

99,242.54

5,780.43

6,780.43

1,685.m

1,685.00

1,685.m
1,585.O

1,685.00

1,685.OO

1,585.OO

1,685.00
1,685.0O

1,585.00

)j(il
n

'lti
=

S F',

o

66,836,70
66,836.70

105.50
619.70

18,990.62



I..n! of R.d.mpton/a.p.yr.nt

c.rholl. SYrlrn B.nk Limired 1,500.00

Il r ldn lr s.rrcd by t np.!3u io.liB ch.l!! o. clmnt .s.ls of th.
onr.n, .nd 6.p.6t. Goonte tiv.n by Plu mEn ds Ltd. {P.cnt co.l

c.rholi. sYri.n B.nk Limn.d lrrc5.
11 s lo.n ir s&md by p.np..3! n€f.g c6.C! on cumnt lgtr ot ilt
comp.nv .rd .orpoar. Gonfie aiv.n bY t.ul 4Eh.rl, !td. {P.Enl co.,

Catholi. 5yria. B.nk tlmit.d 495 23

R.p.y.bl. in u .q@l nohtht i^st.llNnts
sr.nin:lEm 2ath Jut 202{

T1li3 lo.n k s.ruEd try p.np.r3u no.tlng ch.E. o. .u@nt .s.t5 of th.
comp. nv . nd .orpoEr. Gu.mnt.. atv.n by P.!lh.(h..E Ltd. {P.r.ntco,)

AU tr.ll rin.nr. A:nk Lld,
R.p.y.bk ln 1! .q@l @nthlv iE!.llrentr
n niilg lr.m 3.d Aa.il, 2023

Ina b.n b s.c!rcd bV p.np.$u lb.riry ch.E! d .!ft.n .sG or th.
cmo.ry $d @.Dont cumntc rn.n bY P.ur @Eh.nts ltd. (P.E,rt co )

au sh.ll fln.nc. B.nk Lrd.

i.r.v.bk ln 13.eEl mnihly ind.llmnB
tr.rrina lroh $th l.nDry, 2025.

rtir b.. Ir S..uEi by p.nr.su ndri,l .h.ra. 6 .!m.l .ts.ls ol th.
.ohp.nv .nd @rpodl. 6u.mnt . rry.n by ?.ol @Eh.nts ttd. IP.r.nt co,)

R.p.y.bl. in 1,2 .qual mnihv inn.Im.nts
lr.niry lrcn 5$ odoh.r, 2o2r

'nri5 lo.. i! sec{Ed by p.np.i3u no.ri.a ch.rg. on .un nt.ss.ls ol th.
cohp.ny .nd .o,Fdt. G{ont . 8 .n by P.ul @th.nts Ltd. (P.,..t Co.)

R.p.FbL in 2a .qul Mtht i.at iklE,lts
.t ii,tr lEm 5th s.Dt.hb.r, 202!

.lo.nirs..ucdhyp.np..runo.ftE.h.8.on.!m .stsotdr
@mp.ny ..d corDoEt. GDm,n- rry.i by ,.ul 4rch.nc Ltd. {P:Em co.)

\,ICDL 1,500.00 1,500.00

rhrt ro.n E s..uEd bv p.rp.su$o.nnatn.rE onco@nt.grsoirft

C.ph.l Sm.ll tln.nc. Bink Lrd,

R.p.y.bL ln 35 .qEl m.rhly itut.llN.rs
$.nI{ ftom Lr o.rob.., 2023

Thir lo.h i, S..ucd bV p.np.!ru i..ting chrB. on cur.nl.ss.ttofrh.
coDp.r'r.nd corpo6r. Gur.n.r4sry.n by P.ulh.rch.nt' Lrd- lP.Enl co.)

Capit.l Sn.ll Fl.ane Bant Ltd. 237.t1 579.9)
i.p.y.bL h 36 mnrl y iGt.llenr.
rbni,I lrh 1n lum, !2!

fiir b.n b s..uEd by p.np.su f,otins ch.B. on cu@nt .t*ts of !h.
.omD.ny .ii cdDoht. G€mde riv.n bv P.ul mEn ntl Ltd- {P.rohl Co.)

Chol.n.ndrl.m hEnm..i.nd
24953 495 35

Rep.y.bL h 35 mnlhv in5r.llh.nrt
3t rtana hom 10tn F.bru..y, 2023

TiB ldn is s..u€d by p.np.$u Ao.tiry.h.B. on cqd.nt.sretsolth.
comp.hy .nd .oroo6t. Gu.d..r..siv$ by P.ulm.rchrnB Ltd. (t.chl co )

l.p.y.bl h 2a .qEl lMltlly iniLllDnls
3t rti{ tff ln Aaus! x)23

fii. b.n i.5..!ed by p.rip.$s,oxinr.h.t oncorcm.etsotth
ffi9.'ry.ddF..t Gu.nt.. iivcn by Plul ,lEh.nr. Ltd. {P.E co.l.
At,th.r.b.cqdE nl !o mhlrin loi c.sh Mnth ln th. Fom oa fDA to
b. L,l sn . B.nt'r lEn. shkh ar to t o@itu br P.ul M.d!.nts Liitt d

1,733 39

r!r.y.bL in 24 .(61 mnlhly hn [mnt5
rbnirr lrm 24tll Gob.r, 2023

rhl! lo.n L s.cued by p.np$3. notng ch.r8p oh cur.nr .5*t5 of rh.
onp.nv .nd @rrodt Gomn|.. alv.n hy P.ol mrh.itt Ltd. (P.Enl co,).
A&o, rh... b. equie@ to mint.in lor C.th M.rti. i. ttE fod oftoi lo
6. Lpt und.r B.nk 3 lan, shth b ro b. prdld.d by ,.ul M.rcli..r. Umn.d

R.p.yrbh 
'n 

24 .qul mnrhly inn.ll@ntt
n.nid lrcm 2alh xd.hb.r, 2023

fiis b.. i! S.cuEd !y p:rip..tu ndrirlg charr. on .u...nr .sers ol th.
.onp.nv .nd .o.ponr. Gu.dnt.. riv.n bv P.ul r.dh.nt! ttd.lP.r.it co.).
als, ri.a ir . r.quich.nt lo mlnt.in 10* (.rh M.Ain ih th. rom ol roe lo
b. Lrr und.r A..k t li.4 whkh ir ro b. @A.d bv p.ul M.EtEna Lifrh.d

R€p.y.bl. in $.qurl tu^lhV i^n.ilm.nis
stni.g irom 2nh luly, 202'l

rrrB lo.n ir S.curcd by p.dp83u no.rina ch.i. on cltnl *s.15 .l th.
.omp.ry..d corpoEt. Gu.m.r!. siv.n byP.ulh.Eh..tr Ltd. {P...nrco,).
alro, th.o ir. cquteh.^t to m.iat in 1096 6.h M.{i.1. tlE F6m olFDi to
6. k.pr und.rB.nk's li.n, whicn Bro b. p@il.d by P.ul Merch.nt3 lihit.d

Thn b.n i3 s..uEd 6y p.np.ss ,...i.1 .h..is o^ cu(d .'+E ol th.
@np..v ..d 6rDo..t Gumnt.. an r by P.ul mEh.nt' Ltd. (P.cnr co.).
Also, rh.d ir r EquiEMnr ro 6.int i. 109( 6sh M.rain in th. 106 ol toe ro
b. l.pl uhd.r 8.6(. lLn, {hkh r! to b. pdrd.d by ,.ul M.Eha.rl Limh.d

350
R.p.y.bb ln :16 .qd mlnht hn lmnls
n nih. fin 7lh l{E , 2021 fik |€. i! r.c!r.d bv $.rift ch.rc. on vehicl.!

sFt
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Period

Amount of
lnstallment

No. of
lnstallments

Total
Repayment

Jan,2023 to March,
2024 Rs 0.50 Cr 15 Rs 7.50 Cr

April. 2024 to March,

2026 Rs 1.00 Cr 24 Rs 24.00 Cr

April, 2026 to March,
2027 Rs 1.50 Cr 72 Rs 18.00 Cr

April, 2027 to Dec,

2027 Rs 1.17 Cr 9 Rs 10.50 Cr

Total 60 Rs 50.00 Cr

Period

Amount of
lnstallment

No. of
lnstallments

Total

Repayment
Nov, 2023 to Oct,

2024 Rs 0.75 Cr 72 Rs 9.00 Cr

Nov, 2024 to Oct,

2025 Rs 1.10 Cr t2 Rs 13.20 Cr

Nov, 2025 to Aug,

2026 Rs 1.25 Cr Rs 12.50 Cr

Sept, 2026 to Oct,

2026 Rs 2.65 Cr 2 Rs 5.30 Cr

Total 36 Rs 40.00 Cr

Amount of
lnstallment

No. of
lnstallments

Total
Repayment

May, 2024 to April,
2025 72 Rs 11.28 Cr

May,2025 to April,
2026 1) Rs 16.56 Cr

May,2025 to March,

2027 Rs 15.60 Cr

April, 2027 to May,

2027. Rs 3.28 Cr ) Rs 5.55 Cr

Total 35 Rs 50.00 Cr
/,.7

\-4
\,

s Frl

No. of
lnstallmentsPeriod

Amount of
lnstallment

Total

Repayment
March, 2025 to
February, 2026 Rs 2.07 Cr t2 Rs 24.84 Cr

March, 2026 to
February,2027 Rs 2.96 Cr 1.2 Rs 35.52 Cr

March, 2027 to
ianuary,2028 Rs 3.31 Cr 77 Rs 36.41 Cr

February, 2028 Rs 3.23 Cr 1. Rs 3.23 Cr

Total 36 Rs 100.00 Cr

-'l
0r0

J

_tu

Period

Rs 0.94 Cr

Rs 1.38 Cr

Rs 1.56 Cr 10



Note 17 : EqUITY CAPITAL

Amount {Ri. h rakh3l Amoun. (Rs. h Lrlh,

AcllerEd
Equity sh.res of R5. lO ..ch

!Ec!g
Equity Shares oI R5. 10 each

subs.rb.d &fullv P.id uo

Equiry sha.esol Rs- 10 each

4,54! OC

4,2*.45

3,a7,7 tA69

3,A7,71,A69

4,5@_00

3.417.15

3,877.15

4,26,44.6t6 4,264.& a,al,71,469 a,a77.E

lhe Comp.ny has ore dasr ot €quity sha.e. havinA . p.r v.ls. of Rs 10 p€r shs.€. Eich slB.eholde. ,s eliriue for orE vole p.r 5h..e held

lEr€ arercihare in ttE p.eedins liE yeaB alloted.r fslly p3id up*lthout paynent b.in6 r€.eived I. c.sh,/ Esus rnarcs/ SorJstt 8.cI.

Itse a.. @ .haes cenEd fo, i$E u.de. option5 a.d .ontracrt cmnr@.ts fq sle oI 5hies / dislnE.itscnt.

B. Recof,ciliarion olNumb.rof share r oul slandin

c. sh-.t in !h. @mpany hrld by...h rh.]thold.r holdinS nor. than 5%.har.s

o. Preler!nes and 8.str ict io ns attar rovarious classcs of 5har.s

N.m. of sh.Ehold.r (Mr./M6.)

% of Holdin8 % ol Holdint

M.. Raim€5h 8.ns.l( As. nornineeo{ Paul erchants

Paul Me,clEnls Ud {Holdry ComFiy)

I

1@

1

4.87.11469 tt:

1-S ISF

)

5har6 outsb ndinE ar the bednn int of the ye.r
5har6 l.rled duin6the year

Shi.es bo.rtht bact dudry the y6.

3,47,71,469
34,77,147

3,A1,7 L A69

sh.r.souBt ndiry.t the.nd olth. y.ar 4,26,4,6L6 ,,a7,1Ls9

Rights,PEr.r!m.s.nd i.slri.rionsittacfting lovarious.hss.rof thar.s

NoSpeial Right3, Preferences & 86vicrbn5 Atr.ched
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For the Yea..nd.d 31st Mar 25 For the Year.nd€d 3l5t Mar 24

ToTAL (on

Amortis.d Coil)

Dis.ontinu.d Continued
op.retionr

IOTAL (On

financi.lAstcts

Amortiscd cost)

lnterest lncom. dt toans

Gain on Assiflmentof Finanihltus€e

20,891.68

5m.39

0.83 20,892.SO

560.39

16,039.95

84.10

2.50 16,042.45

84.10

Total R.v.nu! tmm Op.r.tiont 21,452.06 0.83 2!,452.89 16,124.05 2.50 16,u6.55

NOIE 19 I INTERESf INCOME AND GAIN ON ASSIGNMENT OF FINANCIAL ASSET

ot.20 : FEs AilO COMMISSIO I

to Fees andCommhion ln@m€.

Notc 2 t oTHER I\|COM€

Forth! Yr.r.nd.d 315t Mi.25 For th. Y.ar cnd.d 31$ Mar 24

Discontinued
Opcration!

Continucd
Oper.tionr

TOTAI"
Dir(ontinued
Oparitions

continued
Opcrations

TOTAL

Re.lised Gain lrom lnveslrnenB
Unrealised Gain from lnvesbnents
Mis.ellan€ous ln ome

32.52
96.96
0.52

28.11

11.79
3.52

12.41

49,10

1@.@
0.s2

40.72

10.12

a6.2 )

13.60

2.72

21.92

Total 157.90 33.12 191.01 96.59 16.31 r u.90

Particulars

tor th. Y.ercndrd 31rt Mar25 Forthe Year.nd.d 3rst M.r 24

DiJ(ontinuad
Op.rationj

Continued
Op€r.tions

TOTAL
Dii.ontinued
Op.rrtions

TOTAI

lntercstm bonowings
loterest oo NCD

B.nk Charses

1,759._63

168.21

13.36
12.O1

0.53

7,232.94
72.O1

163.74

6,167.39

119.06

7.27
18.81
26.54

6,158.56
18.81

1{5.70
Iotal 7327,44 145.90 7,473.73 6,2a6.45 6.7 t 6,333.16

2: fINANC cosTS

0
.A

torthe Yearcnd.d 31it Mar 25 tor lhe Year andad 3lst Mar 24

Diaconlinued Continued
TOTAL

Oircontinucd
Op.retiont

Continu.d
oparations

IOTAL

lncom€ froft Mon€yTransier Service

Other Commissbn lncome-P.ulpay
OSr€r Commissbn lncorn€-Tra vel

Ofler te€s a nd Commision lncome' 477.(A

0.18
s.29
0.63

44.88

o.18
5.29
0.63

416.48

0.07

208.99 191.W

69.56
13.89

405.99

69.64
13.89

371.50 50.99 422.59 209.06 zao,4s 489.52

torth€ Year end.d 31st M.r 25 For th. Year end.d 31st Mar 24

Dircontinued
Oper.tions

IOTAL
Discontinued
opcrations

Continued
opcrrtbns

TOTAL

5.leries & Allowanc€s

StaffWelfare tie.nres
Cont ibrtion to ESI & EPF

Gratuity
Bmus

3,425.51

42.O1

1(B,54
169.8

31.79
102.57

219.49
1.22
4.24
3.59

1.08
3.70

3,64S.00

43.89
116.78
tn-n
32.86

L06.27

2,619.03
36.60

|0,97
r44.12

38.45
73.68

295.58
1.87
1.42
4.59
2.72
3.61

2,974.60
38.47

102.38
144.71
40.57
77.29

Total 3,879.55 234.O2 4,t11.51 3,O72.44 309.18 3,382.O2

oARi{-

NOIE 23: EMPLOYTE BENEFIT TXPENSES

Continued
Op!rataont

Continu.d
operations

'i



torth€ Ye.rended 31rt M.r 25 for the Year.nd.d 31st Mar 24

Oir.ontinu.d
Op.r.tiont

Continucd
TOTAL

Discontinucd C-ontinucd

Co.nmirsbn bqDht & lndo NAal
Cornput€r beenses
Certiftation & lntergr.tion tees

rebphoE tpens€5
Iravelin8 & Conver.rE€ ExperE€5

Lega l, Professiooa I & Consulta ncy cha rg€s

Parn.nts To Auditors (Refd t{ote (l) Below)
SY't6n Adit t)aer6cs
Printint & Statoi.ry
R6lt, Tales & En€rgy Cost

Advertisement & tublicity
kovision tor lmpa;ment Of Lo.n Asset

cashft e€ Ch.rSebad/Dbpute tost
Repair & M.inErlarr€
Dire.tor'S tees, Allo./.ncr' And Expenses

Cmferencc And Meetina Exp

Pct tG And Teletram

FreiShtAndCarbge
S€ er Cha rSes

Provinoo oo advan(es
Mis. Office E)aen56

66_97

43.87
97.E9

107.66
330.20

2.50

41-91
1,009.37

40,.57
3A 28

?0.37

25.84

0.71

7.84
20.23
3.86
1.61
0.03

16.16

163.06

1.05
7.26

2041
o25
4.04
8.42
0,98

11.56

0.39

,0.00

0.09

12.91

45.62
7.89

1.06

68.23

2.50
13.95
42.45

1,012.54
404.57
41.84
20.31
o39

25.88

0.71

7.44
2t}33

3.86
2.63

12.94
1616
45.52

170.91

22.66

39.08
139.39
!38.47
297.69

l.l6

46.60
7EO16
390.89
84.a7
45.55

58.70
0.35

20.56
11.84

4.42

10.60
75.29
8.01

776.11

47.85
3.52

1Lm
31.65
o20
9.75
1.15

11.14

14.61
0.33
6.80

1_35.91

7.22

,o.oo

72-1a

77.21

18.95

47.A5

26.19
u.m
31.65
39.24

\49.14
145.82
308.83

1.36
14.61
46.93

786.95

390.89
220.43
45_55

1.22
s8.70

0.35

20.56
11.84
4.42

10.60
28.06
8.01

17.21
195.(b

Total 2,441.99 132.53 2,514.62 2,292.6t 330.38 2,622.99

NOt' 24:OTHER€XP€NSES

NOfE 24

Note 25: nsibil & oth.r Soci.lWelfir! E

Note 26: nalfte

TOTA!

h.s been impo!.d upon Paul M€rchants timrc" P.ivata:llrdt€d (PMFPI)by the
Au827,2021. Th€ same i5 disclos€d as.n extrao.diniryitcm in the standalone finan

For th. Y..r.nded 31st Mar25 tor th. Year.nd!d 31st Mrr 24

P.ymentito th. auditor oii.ontinued
Opcr.tiont

c-ontinued

Op€rations
TOTAL

Continu!d
Oprr.tion.

TOTAI

Stautory Audit Fees

fees for oth€r s€rvires

1.00
0.so
1.00

1.m
0.50
1.00

0.59
0.18

0.59

0.59
0.18
0.59

2.50 2.50 1.35 1.35

Forthr Y..r cnded 3lit Mar25 For th€ Y€.r.nd.d 3l$ Mar 24

0ir(ontinu.d
Op.rztions

Continucd
Oparationt

TOTAT
Disconlinu.d
Operetiont

Continucd
Op.rationr

TOTAL

61.96 53-11
A) GlDrs Amount RcqulEd to be spent by th. Co

Durin8th. Yc.r

B) Amoum Spcnt on CSR Du.ing tt|e yc.r
Amount caricd ,orwacd ,aom prEvio ur yaa.
Settins upofoid age home and Daycare centre

' kadicating hunger
- Gid5 €du.ation
C) trc8s/Shortta ll in.xp.nditurc, ifany
DlTot lorshort atlor.erll.ry.ars, if any
E) R€.ton o f Shortfall
f) .ur. ofCSRAdiviti.t
G) Dct.ilr of CSR co ribut.d tD r€lat d P.rtics
includinB Tr(6t conlro lhd by Comp. ny

H) D.t.lls of movcmrnt ln provirion. i, any, mad.
with cspcct to . liabillty by.ntcring lnto.
conti.tr.l oblB.tbn

2 5.00
0.66

24.37 0.17

s.01

o.79
42.55
22.65

1.6s

1.23

o.79
42.55

23.88
1-65

8,77

Total 51.03 o.r1 71.98 67.64 t.23 68.87

Forth. Yc.r ended 3lrt Mrr 25 For thc Ye.rrnd.d 31st M.r24
Particulirs Dt3continuad

oparetionr
Continued

Oper.tioni
TOTAL

Disrontinu.d
Op€rations

Continued
opcrriioni

TOTAL

Loss on Cyb€r Fraud Cas€

RSIPen lticr A,/c' .10.50 30.50
Total 30.50 30.50

' D'rrin8 2nd osarter, Pcn.ltyot&a 3O.5 lalhs
9.1(iil(d)ol $e Mast r Dir€ctions on PPIS dated

.orEolid.d finan&lresults of th€ group.

4.^'-
the

13.95
os4
3.21

20.41
44.13

101.93
116.09
331.18

Dis(ontinu.d
Op.r.tion,

L5,77
25.O0

0.66
24.34



Note 27: Related Party Oisclosures
(As per lnd AS 24 issued by lCAl)

A.List of Related Parties having control or significant influence
Sr. No. Nature of Relationaship Name of Related Party

Paul Merchants Limited1 Holding Company

2 Fellow Subsidiary Company Paul lnfotech Private Limited
PML Realtors Private Limited

3 Key Management Personnel

Mr. Sat Paul Bansal- Chairman &
Managing Director
Mrs. sarita Rani Bansal - Whole Time
Director
Mr. shaibu Geevarghese Cherian -

Whole Time Diredor
Mrs. Aarti Markan - Chief Financial

Officer
Mrs. Shivani Sharma - Company

Secretary

Director Mr, Rajneesh Bansal- oirector

5
Relative of Directors / Key Management Personnel Mrs. Aastha Bansal- Relative of Director

Mr. Sandeep Bansal - Relative of
Director

Mrs. Nita Sansal - Relative of Director
Firm in which Director or relative of Director is proprietor Tapa Gas Service

PaulDistributors
Channel Management & Marketing

7
Partne6hip fim in which Director or relative of Dire€tor is a

partner Eright Cove Goods
Paul lnnovations LLP

Niraa Talent
Guru Production
Cable Distribution Services

Bright Fumishing ILP

l-Shop

Shubh Shop

White Hill Distribution
Tea Stall
Pitaara Marketing

8
Companies in which 0irector / Relative of director exercise
control/significant inf luence

\a\"-

A v,si

n'

o
/:,

MaBical Vacation Travel & Tourism LlC,

UAE

Paul Fincare Private Limited
9X Media Private Limited
AOB 21 Media Private Limited
Bosna Digital Entertainment Private

Limited
BBSM Films Private Limited
Collective Media Ventures Private

Limited
Diwa Broadcasting Private Limited
lnfotechture Solutions Private Limited
(formerly Paul lnstacred Private Limited)

Paul E commerce Private Limited
PaulSwift Credit Private Limited
Paul Excursions Private Iimited
Paul Mercha nts jewels & Metals LLP

Paul Overseas Private Limited

Pitaard Talkies Private Limited
PML Holidays Private Limited

l,Di -1r.-'.-

4
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8. Oisclosura oltransedions b€tw€an thc Companyand related panies

;oi the Peraod ended 31sl Me.2025

atur. of Trans..tion

Rent paid

Xcy Mr.agement

Amount (R5. ln l.khsl

HoldingCompany
Amount (Rs. ln l.khs)

Director & Rel.tive of
Diredo/xMP Amount

(Rr. rn lakhsl

Relet€d P.rty

(R5,ln lakhs)

28.67

GST on corporate guarantee given

Rent paid to WholeTlme Director 4.05

Reimbursement of LeEal Expenses

Rent received 0.91

1.84

Net Service CharSes Received - DMT

Service Charges Paid - lndo Nepal 0.08

Net Amount of workins capital repaid 2,305.62

lnterest paid on loan 1,341.20

Commission forcross reference sales of Forex Seruicesearned 12.24

Commission received for cross reference sale 1.91

CommisSion Paid for cros! reference 5ale 4.28

Dividend Peid

Right lssue 2,481.17

Purchase of 8oods & servjces 56.53

Addational Eorrowins f rom director 412.00
Additional BorrowinS f rom KMP 189.50

Additional Eorrowint fiom KMP 19.00

lnterest Exp on borrowang from director 9.24

lnterest Exp on borrowing from KMP 6.9s

lnterest Exp on borrowing from KMP 4.22

Loan & Advance.epaid to Director 475.54

toan & Advance repaid to KMP 156.50

l-oan & Advance repaid to KMP 10.00

lnterest Exp on borrowinS from FellowSubsdiary
453.00

63.14

Loan & Advance repaid to Fellow Subsidiary 177.74

lnterert income on loan & Advances given to Related Party 71.75

Loan &Advances.epaid by Related Party 135.m
lnlerest income on Loen & Advancesgiven to (MP 0.83

Loan & Advance r€paid by WholeTime Director 2.91

Remuneration paid to relative of director 12.00

Remuneration paid to WholeTime Oirector 72.39

Remuneration paid to CMD 350.m
Remuneration paid to CompanySecretary & Ch ief fina ncia I Officer 30.57

Totel 852.91 6,431.70 908.78 80s.s3

C. Disclosure olOutst.ndins balanc€ o, related parties
For the Period e.d€d 31st Mar 2025

Nature ofTransaction
K€y Manegemant

Peasonnel

Amount (Rs. ln lalhsl

(xoldinS conpany)
Anount (Rs.ln lekhs)

Ol.rclor & R.l.tlve of
Olractor/l(MP Amount

{Rs. ln l.ths)

Related Party

Others Amount
(Rs.ln lakhrl

GST on co.porate guarantee payable

Working Capital facility 15,68s.00

Loan & Advances payable to tellow Subsidiary 965.00

Loan & Advances payable to Fellow Subsidiary

Loan & Advances payeble to Oirector 75.m
l-oan & Advances payable to KMP 9.00

[oan & Aa,vances receivable from Related Party 40.00

Loan & Advances Gceivablelrom wholeiime Oiredor 7.58

Total 9r.58 16,585.00 1,ms.m

sFt

RH.

Add ition al Borrowing f.om Fellow SubsidiaJy

4-



B. Dis.losure oftransadions between the Company.nd related prrties
For the Period ended 31rt Mar 2024

Nature ofTransaction
Arnount(Rs.)

(Holdins

lakhsl

oir.ctor & Relativ€ o,
Dircdor/KMP Arnount

(Rs. rn lakhs)

Retated Party

Otficr5
ArnountlR5.ln

l.khr)

21.16Rent paid to Holding Company
L4.40GST on corporate guarantee given

Rent paid to Whole Time Dkector 11.68

Reimbursement of legal Expenses 18.15

Rent receaved from related party 0.93

Rent received from related garw o.29
Net Service Charqes Received from Holdinq Company 5.10
Service Charges Paid to related Party 4.60

Net additional workins capital 4,748.00
lnterest paid on working capital taken from Holding Company 2,t86.76
Commission for cross reference sales of torex Services earned 24.30
Commissaon for cross reference sale 1.27

Dividend Paid to Holding Company 232.63 0.00
Right lssue 4,962.15
Purchase of goods & services from Holding Company 27L.77
Sale of goods & services to related party 4.05 34.90
Additional Borrowing f rom director 278.00
Additional Borrowing from Chaiman & Managing director 282.00
Additional Borrowing from Whole Time Dire.tor 30.00
lnterest Exp on borrowing from director 5.47

lnterest Exp on borrowing lrom Chairman & Managing Director 4.28
lnterest Exp on borrowing from Whole-time Director 0.51
Loan & Advance repaid to Director 214.50
loan & Advance repaid to Chairman & Managing Director 354.80
Advance repaid to Whole Time Director 30.00
Additiona I Borrowing from relative of director
Additiona I Borrowing from Fellow Subsadiary 16.00

lnterest Exp on borrowing rrom related party
lnterest Exp on borrowing from relative of director
lnterelt Exp on borrowing from Fellow Sub6idiary 51.45

Loan & Advance repaid to related party 200.00
loan & Advance repaid to relative of Director
Loan & Advance repaid to tellow Subsidiary 30.00
loan & Advancegiven to related party 2@.00
lnterest ificome on Loan & Advances given to related party 61.18
lnterest incorne on Loan & Advances given to KMP 1.11

lnterest income on Loan & Advances given to Whole Time Director 2.66

Advance paid to Whole Time Director
Remuneration paid to relative oI director 12.m
Remuneration paid to WholeTime Director 63.20
Remuoeration paid to CMD 3@.00

Remuneration paid to Company Secretary & Chief FinancialOfficer 31.01

Total 12,489.61 514.02r,LLL,25

T

Di...tor & Rclativc of
Dicctor/(MP Amount

(Rs.ln lakhr)

Rel.tcd P.rty
othcrt

&nount (Rs, ln
lalhst

Nature ofTran5action
Kcy Mana8arrant

Amo'rnt(Rs.ln l.khsl

(noldinS

company)
A.nount(Rs.ln

lakhsl
GST on corporate guarantee payable t4.40
Working Capital f acility 18,990.62

5.44Trade Receivable5

Trade Receivables 0.86
Trade Receivables L.25

619.70Loan & Advances payable to Fellow Subsidiary

Loan & Advances payable to Director 63.50

Loan & Advances payable to KMP

Ioan & Advances receivable from Related Party 175.00

Loan & Advances receivable from WholeTime Director 10.49

19,005.02 55.61\ 800.14Tota I s2.49

C. Disclosure of Outstanding b.lance oI related parties
For the Period ehded 31st M.,2024

4

502.O2

42.00
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Not 2E: Oisclos!r... p.r p.r.2.1ol M.!t!r Dirc.tion - R...w! B.nkoflndl. {No.-B.ntint Flnanci.l Co mp.ny - sc.b B.3.d R.:ul.tion) Dn.d ion!, 2o23,vld€
RBUoof, 20?}24/1(|6 DoR.FlN.iEc.No.45lt8.10.1192q8-24 d.t d octob.. 19 2023.

h..@rd.nc! wth th. rcgu Ltory tuldanc. on impt m.nr.tlon ol lndA5 ku.d by nAlon Octob.r 19,2023, ti. comp..y h.s comput.d provbion.t p.r ln.om. ,.cognitbn
Asct cLssific.tion.ltd prol/isions m.rn llnACP) isiuld by RBIrollly ior @mp...tu. purpoi..s spcc iliGd I h.,Gh. A comp.nsion bctut n ptovblon r.qulr.d und.r IRAGP

.d imp.i.m.d .trou.nc. nl.d. und.r IND A5lO9 b3iv.n b.low:

(11 T}le sho.tfall of ts.3,14,80,699/- Eetw€€n th€ proviriorE ar per RB IRACP llonrls a.d Loss albwances as per rNO A510q h.r b€en mainrairpd as tmpairment Rese ein
accordanc€ with RB circu lar DoR lN8f{}.cc. PD.No.109/22.10.106/2019-20 d.ted 13.03.2020_

(2)The compary has followed the 6sumption cmtained in INIAS 109 aboutcmsiderin€ Stage-l advances as those which are SOdays past due.-the sam€ is as p€r board
approred pdicy as well .5 placrd befre Adit Committee.

Total Stage 1 1,21,17 5.91 170.19 1,2t,205.78 48 5.50 - 315.31
Stage-2 3,905.33 27.34 3,417.99 15.62 11.72

Stage-3 51.14 148.O1 72.35 11.21

Toral 1,25,490.45 254.67 1,25,23L.74 57 3.44 -314.81

44-<-'-

o829,8
2i

Ass.t cLttific.tbn .i F. RBI Asr.t cl.sriftatior.s
p.r lnd A5 109

Gro3s C.rrylnt

AS lid AS l(x,

N.tC.rryhg Provhions r.quncd.s
Oiffererca b€tel€en

Itld A5 109 provisio.t

5=(3)-(a) 6 7={a)-(6)1 2 3 4

Pedormint Asset

Stage 1 1,2r,31s.97 110.19 1,21,205.78 485.50 -315.31

Stage-2 3,905.33 27 .34 3,a17.99 15.62 11.72
Standard

1,25,@3-77 501.13 -303.60Sub total 1,25,281.30 197.53

Non-Perlormint Asser {NPA)
14.31 -4-29Sub standa.d Stage-3 1.0.01 133.0S

Doubtful- upto l year Stage-3

Doubtful- 1to 3 years Staee-3

Doubtlul - More than 3 years StaBe-3 16.@ 1.13 14.96 8.04 -6.92
Umecured Stage'3 50.00 50.00
Subtotal for Doubdul 66.09 51.13 14.96 58,04 -6.92

La6s Stage'3
Subtotal for NPA 209.15 61.14 148.01 72.35 -11.21

Stage-1

Stage-2

Other items such as

guarantees,loan

commitments, etc. which are

in thescope of lnd AS 109 but
not covered under current
I ncome Recognitaon. Agset

Classification and Provisioning

{IRACP) norms Stage-3
srrbtotal

209.15

(3)Thecomp.ny hav€eady ropt€d theGlide hth for NPA classiljcation norms as m€ntjoned in RBI M6terOiections vide RBI/OoR/2o2124/106
DoR.Fr N. REC.No.45/03.10.11912023-24 O.lohet 19,m23 ard ane^d€d time to time and hes cldsifled its debt! outstanding exceedi.g 90 days as NPA-

143.06

50.00

m

T-------- -------
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Note 30: OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

Note 31: Loan to Assets Ratio

As per Master drcular - RBI Master Directioni vide RBt/DoRl2O23-24/tOG
DoR. FlN.REC.No.45l03.L0.11912023-24 dated October 19,2023, the Company is

maintaining Loan to Assets Ratio of 86.66% for loans granted against collateral security of
Gold Jewellery.

Note 32: Minimum Revenue from Operations

Note 33: Disclosures as pe. paragraph 37.4.4 of RBI Master Directions vide RBI/DoR/2023-
241106 DoR.FlN.REC.No.45lO3.1O.l79 12023-24 dated octobet 19, 2023

A5 at 31st Mar 2025 As at 31st March 2024

Amount (Rs. ln lakhi)
Number of @ld loan Accounts
Auctioned

3,928

Outstanding dues on these loan

account5
4,949.14 2,299.U

Realised Amount from audion 5,080.30 2,372.83

The company confirms that none ofthe Sroup companies have participated in the above

auctions.Ihe details have been compiled by the management and relied by auditors.

As at 31st Mar 2025 As at 31st Mar 2024

Discontinued

Operations
Continued operations Total Total

Amount (Rs. ln lakh5) Amount (Rs. ln lakhs)
Amount (Rs. ln

lakhs)
Amount (Rs. ln lakhs)

Net Profit for the Year (Rs. )

Number of Equity Shares (/Vos. )

Weighted AveraSe of Outstanding
Equity Shares (Nos.)

Basic & Diluted EPS (Rs pershqre)

6,058.7s

4,26,44,616

4,25,63,637

!4.23

-352.44

4,26,48,676

4,25,63,637

5,706.26

4,26,44,616

4,25,63,637

13.4!

3,053.40

3,47 ,77,469

7.88

Pa rticula rs
As at 31st Mar 2025 As at 31st Mar 2024

Amount (Rs. ln lakhs) Amount (Rs. ln lakhs)

Remeasurement (Gain)Loss on defined

benefit obligations

lncome tax relating to above

Remeasurement Loss on defined
benefit obliSations (net of Tax)

4.45

-2.13

2.49

-0.53

As at 31st Mar 2025 As at 31st March 2024

Amount (R5. ln lakhs) Amount (Rs. ln lakhs)

Advances against security of Gold

Jewellery
1,25,400.45

Total Assets of the Company 7,44,704.59 99,790.65

.ci.\

Note 29. Earnings per share ( Disclosure required as per INDAS 33)

The company has complied with RBI guidelines with regard to minimum stipulated revenue

from operations of 5070 since its start of business operations from December 2012.

h-

IL
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Particulars

Pa rtic ula rs

95,338.69

Particula15
Amount (Rs. ln lakhs)

5.768



Note 34.1 : Disclosure as per RBI Master Directions 2023-24 dated October 19, 2023

Particulars

(Rs. ln lakhs)

For the Period ended 3lst
Mar 2025

For the Period ended 3lst Mar
2024

Amount O/S Amount O/S

As at 31st Mar 2025 As at 31st Mar 2024sNo. [iabilities Side

(1)
loans & advances availed by NBtC inclusive of interest
accured thereon but not paid

(a) Debenture -Secured 120.98 722.4L

- Unsecured NIL NIL

{other Falling within the meaning of public deposit)
NIL NIL

(b) Deferred Credits NIL NIL

(c) Term Loans from Eank/Fl 56,159.77 28,778.28

(d) lnter Corporate Loans & Borrowings NIL NIL

(e) Commercial Paper NIL NIL

(f) Public Deposits NIL NIL

(g) Other Loans NIL NIL

(i) Other Borrowing From Bank/Fl 25,434.37 19,002.60

(ii) Loan From Related Party 77,734-OO 19,775.42

l2)

Break Up of 1(f) above (outstanding public deposit inclusive
of interest a.crued thereon but not paid)

(a) ln the form of unsecured debentures NIL NIL

(b) ln the form of Partly secured debentures i.e. debentures
where there is a shortfall in the value of security NIL NIL

( c ) other Public Deposits Ntt NIL

Assets Side As at 31st Mar 2025 As at 3lst Mar 2024

(3)
Breakup ot loan & Advances including Bill Recelvables (other

than those included in (4) below):

(a)Secured 7,25,440.45 95,538.78

(b) Unsecured 50.00 62.53

(4)
Breakup of leased Asset & Stock on hire & other assets

counting towards asset financing activities

(i) Lease Assets lncluding lease rentals under sundry debtors

(a) Financial Lease NIL NIL

(b)Operating Lease NIL NIL

(ii) Stock on hire including hire charges under sundry debtors

(a) Asset on Hire NIL NIL

(b) Repossessed Assets NIL NIL

(iii) Other Loans counting towards asset financing activities

(a) Loans where assets have been repossessed NIL NIL

(b) Loans other than (a) above NIL Ntt
(s) Breakup of investments

Current lnvestments
1. Quoted

(i)Shares

(a) Equity Nll NIL

(b) Preference Nrt NIL

(ii) Debentures and Bonds /.ds"D^ NIL NIL

NIL(iii) Units of Mutual Funds /*oh -K 1,000.52\
sco

IIIIIIIII

IIIII

IIIIIIIII
IIIIIII
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Not.:- 342

(d)

(e)

0)

R€tbtsation obtained from other financial regulators

No Penaliti6 were imposed by RBland other
retulatoE during current ye.rDiscb.ure ot pemlities amposed by RBlandother Reaul.to.s:

Amount in lakhs
As at M.rch 31,2025 A! at M.nh 31,2024

Provision fo. st. rdard assets 197.53
Provisaon fo. non'performin8 ass€ts 61.14 9o'47
Prov6io0 fo. lncome Ta r 1,826.00 986.61
Provtion tor Gratuity 722.25 702.11
Prov6io.r io. leave eflcahsment 45.83 41.15

116.02 81.12
Total 2,369.77 1,456.01

k) Driw ddrn frm Ra$NB
- Ih€re h.s been no draw down from r€5e've. duing th€ year €nd€d M.rdr 31, 2025

(h) Co.'centration of adva nces , exposur€s a rd NPtu

As st March 31, 2025 As at March 31, 2024

Total advances lo twentv lerqest borrower5 1,3@.95 1,308.70

(%) oI advanc6 to twenty la rsest borro\ /e.s to total advances L.08% 1.37%

Total exposure to twenty largest borrowers / customers 1,360.95 1.308.70

{%} oI o(posure to twenty larSest borrowers / cr6lomers tolotal
expo5ure 1.O8./. 1.31.4

Concentration of NPtu
Total Exposure to top four NPA accounts 69.M 86.49

As at March 31, 20245. No. As at March 31, 2025

Agri.ultu€ and.lli.d activities

2 MSME

3 Corpolate bolrow.rs too% a4.ua/.

o.73% o.1u,4

0R 22-A

(r)

(b)

Dirclo.u.c - F. R8l Mrrt.. Di.tctiois 2ozl-24 d.bd Octohc. 19 2023 OOr.r Di..lo.ur6

Det ih offil€ncing of pir.nt company p.oductr l{lt

Th. company ha5 tst ex.c.{.d th. linit of indc bo.rowcr Im it /grqrp bs.ower limil

U.r5€cured Adv.nc6r R.fcrl{ot llo 3

1. Certjft. te of Aulhd b.tk n (CoA) No.

131/2019 &ted ranuarv 25, 2019 iirued bv

RBlto P.ul Mcr.h.nE Fin:n.! Priv.E
Limh.d for is$anceol Prepaid Payment

lrEtrument! valid upto lun€ 30,2026

2. Regbtr.tion und€r Corpo.at Agent unde{

ReSulation 11 of IRDA regulatbns 2O15,

redstsatim number cA0511 dt 2r4S-2O24
valid upto March 11,2027

Provbio.ts and Contingencict ($own undcr the hc.d op.rldtrr. in stit.rnat of profit.nd lcs) :

^fi| ),

lSccror'

l"ol" -a*

1

F



Particulars As at March 31, 2025 As at March 31, 2024

(i) Net NPA5 to Net Adv.n.es (%) o.72 0.66
(ii) Movement ot NPAS ( Gross )

a) Opening Balance 719.00 580.09

b) Additions during the yea r 1,373.83 2,670.57

a) Reductions during the year 1,883.68 2,531.66

b) Closing Balance 209.15 719.00
(iii)

a) opening Balance 628.53
b) Additions during the year 1,373.83 2,633.55

a) Reductions during the year 1,854.35 2,531.66

b) Closing Balance 148.01 628.53

(iv)
Movemert of Provisions for NPA5 ( excluding
provisions on rtardard assets)

a) Opening Balance 90.47 53.45
b) Addltions during the yea r 37.02
a) Reductions during the year 29.33

b) Closing Balance 67.74

U)

l* Net Advancesis computed by reducing provision for non-performing assets from gross loans and arfuances

k Di5closure of customer complaints

(|) lnlormation on instances of lraud N -

lm) Loan.gainst security ot gold

Particulars 3t-03-2025 31-03-2024
Loan granted against collateral ofgold iewellery 125400.45 9s338.69
otal Asset of the Company L44704.59 99790.65

Percentage of loans granted against collateral of
td ewell to TotalAssets 86.66% 95.54%

(n) There is no Overseas Asset (for those with Joint Ventures and Subsidiaries abroad

There is no Off-balance Sheet SPVS sponsored (which are required to be consolidated as per accounting norms)lo)

.Z

830

GARY{

Sr. No Particulars As at March 31, 2025 As at March 31, 2024
No, of complaints No, of complaints

a.

No. of complaints pending at the beginning of the
year 0 0

b No. of complaints received durinB the year 31 43
c_ No. of complaints redressed during the year 31 43
d No of complaints pending at the end of the year 0 0

Movement of NPtu

Movemem of Net NPA5 +

526.64

n.47

C



(p)

Particulars G7 days 8-14 d.ys 15-30 days Over 5 years Total1- 2 months 2-3 months 3-6 months I to 3 years 3 to 5 ye.rs
Borrowings too927 .54 709.00 101635.54

725490.45125452.95 37.50

lnvestments 1000.521000.52
Forei8n Currency Assets

Foreign Currency Liabilities -
Maturity pattern of arsets and liabilnies as on 31st March 2024

Amount in [akhs

Particulars G7 days 8-14 days 15-30 d.ys 1- 2 months 2-3 months 3-5 months 1 to 3 years 3 to 5 yearr Over 5 years Total

Borrowings 550.49 20.09 350.35 7072.O4 1411.36 25642.O5 1631.2 5 6754s.69
Advances 2888.95 320.53 808.92 4904.73 5423.06 14442.67 664r2.45 95601.31

lnvestments
Foreign Currency Assets

Foreign currenry Liabilities

(q) Ratings assigned by credit rating agencies and migration of ratings:-

Particulars Rating Agency Rating Asslgned Oate of Rating

Mifation ln
Ratlng durlng
the ye!r

LonE term Instruments A-lstable 7A-02-2025 No Migration
Long term instruments Acuite A-lStable 7A-02-2025 No Migration
Short Term lnstrument lnlomerics A1 18-02-2025 No Migration

I

Maturity pattern of assets and liabilities as on 31st March 2025
Amount in Lakhs

m
r

25895.54 ro812.51

f------r------

lnfomerics

\.



Note 35. Segment reporting

As per IND As-108 on Segment Reporting, segment inJormation is provided below
(Rs, ln ldkhs)

S no Particular
For the year ending 31st

Mar 2025

For the year ending 31st
Mat 2024

I
a
b

c
d
e
t

Segment Revenue

GOLD LOAN ( DISCONTINUED OPERATION )
DOMESTIC MONEY TRANSFER

PERSONAL LOAN
PREPAID INSTRUMENTS
DISTRIBUTION
OTHER

21,981.56
0.18
1.34

34.O2
44.88

4.51

16,430.74
69.56

1.43
23.57

197.54
6.10

lncome from Operation 22,066.49 16,728.97

Segment E(penditure
GOLD LOAN (DISCONTINUED OPERATION )
DOMESTIC MONEY TRANSFER
PERSONAL tOAN
PREPAID INSTRUMENTs
DISTRIBUTION
OTHER

13,913.76
54.24

o.L4
r88.27
53.08

280.77

t2,266.27
104.98

38.69
156.32
201.96

1.75

Expenses from Operation t4,490.20 12,769.97

PRoFlr BEFoRETAx (a) - ( b ) 7,576.29 3,9s9.00

3
(al
(b)
(c)
(d)
(e)
(f)

SeSment Assets

GOLD LOAN ( DISCONNNUED OPERATION }

DOMESTIC MONEY TRANSFER

PERSONAL LOAN

PREPAID INSTRUMENTS

DISTRIBUTION

OTHER

7,43,783.69

165.65

517.89
30.79

205.57

99,006.92

218.53

0.14

473.64

98.49

22.55

TotalAssets r,44,704.59 99,820.26

Segment Liabilities
GOLD LOAN (DISCONTINUED OPERATION }

DOMESTIC MONEY TRANSFER

PERSONAL tOAN

PREPAID INSTRUMENTS

DISTRIBUTION

OTHER

1,06,087.58
-0.01

1,798.45

-4.76

905.82

l!2.44
47.26

0.84

1,08,787.08 72,096.70

5

(a)
b
c
d
e
t

Capital Employed
GO|-D IOAN ( D|SCONTTNUED OPERAT|ON )

DOMESTIC MONEY TRANSFER
PERSONAL LOAN
PREPAID INSTRUMENTS
DISTRIBUTION
OTHER
U NALI.OCATED ASSETS
UNALTOCATED LIABITINES

-1,280.56
35.55

-700.25

27 ,041,.52

201.78
0.14

3 61.20
57.22
21.70

Total Capital Employed 35,917.51 27,723.56

2.4

2
(a)
(b)
(c)
(d)
(e)
(r)

4
a)
b)
c)
d)
e)
f)

7t,925.40
L6.75

Total l"iabilities

37,696.77

166.66

.t.4e



Note 36 : Disclosure as per para 27.2 of RBt M.ster Directions vide RBI/DoRl2o23-24/ 106 DoR.FlN.REc.No -49lo3-fo-ll9l2023-24 daled
october 19, 2023

Section I

Note 36A (l)- Exposure

1) Exposure to roalestate saclor
(Amount in t Lakhs)

Category Current
year

Previous
Year

i) Oirect exposu|9
a) Residential liortgages -
Lending fully secured by mortgages on resilentbl property flat b or \,!ill be occupied by the bonovier or that is
rented. Exposure u'ould also include nsFfund based (NFB) limib.

N[- Nlt,

b) Conmrercial Resl Estrte -
L,rding seqlred b), morlgages on cownaoial real es.re (offrce huildings- rDlail lipsce, nrultiprrpose co mercirl
purrises, nrultihmily rssiddotial buildirBs- nurlli loolnt d comnr€rcialprdnisas. irdusfial or *arelrusc
sprc€, hotels. laxl acquisitioif developoNot and conshuction. erc.). E\po$re $ould also inchrde non-lilrd
baJ.d (NFII) lilDits.

-10.00 198.49

c) lnves-mqrB h Morlg.ge-Bscksl Seourities (I,iBS) srd olhcr s.curilizdl exposures
i. Residsiial
ii. Ctrnmercial Real Eshte

NIL .'II-

ii) kdi@ct Ex,p,surc
Fund bas€d and non-fun&based exposures on NdionalHousing Bank and HorJsing Finance
Coanpanies-

NIL N]I-

Total Exposure to Real Estate Sector .10.00 198.19

i0l*,



Note 364 (ll)- Exposure to capital market

(Amount in { Lakhs)

Particulars
Current Year Previous Year

i) Direcl investment in equity shares, convertible bonds, convertjble
debentures and units of equity oriented mutual funds the corpus of which is

not exclusively invested in corporate debt

z

ii) Advances against shares / bonds / debentures or other securities or on clean
basis to individuals for investment in shares (including lPOs / ESOPS),
convertible bonds, convertible debentures, and units of equity oriented mutual
fu nds

iii) Advances for any other purposes where shares or convertible bonds or
convertible debentures or units of equity oriented m utual funds are taken as
primary security

iv) Advances for any other purposes to the extent secured by the collateral
secunty of shares orconvertible bonds or convertible debentures orunitsof
equ y oriented mutual funds i.e. where the primary security other than shares /
convertible bonds / convertible debentures / units of equity oriented mutual
funds does not fully cover the advances

v) Secured and unsecured advances to stockbrokers and guarantees bsued
on behalf of stockbrokeB and market makers

vi) Loans sanctioned to corporates against the security of shares /
bonds / debentures or other securities or on clean basis for meeting promote/s
contribution to the equtty of new companies in anticipation of raising resources

vii) Bridge loans to companies against expected equity flows / issues

viii) UndeMriting commitments taken up by the NBFCS in respect of primary issue
of shares or conveftible bonds or convedible debentures or units of equity oriented
mutualfunds

ix) Financing to stockbrokers for margan kading

x)
(i)
(ii)
(iii)

All exposures to Altemative lnvestment Funds:
Category I

Category ll
Category lll

Total exposure to capital market

NBFCS may omit hose line iteos whiah are not apFticable/ nd permited or have nil exposure both in current and p.€vious year. Fu.ther, 6)(pGures againsl
pledge oa shar6 bry prcmoters of a company shallbe sho(n separ.tely
under lhe lespeclive line items.

SF 07c) \i

n / f I

)
I
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Note 364 (lll)- Sectoral exposure

Note:

i. The disclosures as above shall be based on the sector-wise and industry-wise bank credit (stBc) return submitted by scheduled
commercial bank to the Reserve Bank and published by Reserve Bank as'sectoral Deployment of Bank Credit'.
ii. ln the disclosures as above, if within a sector, exposure to a specific sub-sector/ind ustry is more than Lo per cent of Tier I capital
of a NBFC, the same shall be disclosed separately within that sector. Further, within a sector, if exposure to specific sub-
sector/industry is less than 10 per cent ofTier lCapital, such exposures shall be ctubbed and disclosed as "Others" within that
sector.

iii. The company has not classified gold loans granted to borrowers such as small and marginal farmers or those involved in other
allied activites in S.No.1 above as they are not crop loans but instead backed by gold ornaments.

I 1S

it
'4-

Previous YeaaCurr€nt Yeat
Gross NPAS

(l lakhsl
Percer{age ot
Gross NPAS to
lolal exposure
in that sector

Percentage of
Gross NPAS to
tolal exposure
in that sector

Total Exposure
[includes on
balance sheet and
off-balance sheel
erposure)
(t lakhs)

Gross NPAS

F lakhs)

Sectors

NILNIL NILNIL

1. Agriculture and

Allied Activities NIL

2. lndustry
I

Others

NILNIL NIL NIL NIL

Total of lndustry
(i+ii+...+Others)

3- services
0-00 NIL1... 40.00 0.00 NIL 176.6L

Ot h ers
Total of Services
(i+ii+...+Others) 0.00 NIL 776.6r 0.00 NIL

4. Personal Loans

t... 0.00 0.00 NIL 0.00 0.00 NIL

...

Others
Total of Personal Loans

(i+ii+...+Others)

0.00 NIL 0.00 NIL

5. Others

(a) Gold Loan s 125400.45 o.130/. 95362.18 668.92 o.700k
(b) Other Loans 50.00 100.00% 62.53 5 0.00 79.96%
Total of Others 125450.4s 209.1s 95424.77 7La.92 o-7syo

IIII

-E

I-

--

--

CL

GARH

'/.,--ilrs&

TolalExposure
(includes on

balahce sheet and
ofi-balance sheet

exposure)
(a lakhs)

NIL

NIL

40.00

0.00 0.00

1s9.15

5 0.00

0.77vo

m

22.A



Note 36A (lv)-lntra-group exposures

N BFCs shall make the following d isclosures for the current yea r with com paratives for the previous year;

Particulars

Current Year Previous Yea r
i) Total amount of
in tra€ roup
exposures (( lakhs)

ii) Total amount of
top 20 intra€roup
exposures (t lakhs)

iii) Percentage of
intra{loup exposures
to total exposure of
the NBFC on
borrowers/customers (t
lakhs)

i) Total amount of
intragroup
exposures (( lakhs)

ii) Total amount of
top 20 intragrou p
exposures (l lakhs)

iii) Percentage of
inta€roup
exposures to total
exposure ot the
NBFC on
borrowersrcustomers
(( lakhs)

Loans & Advances Given
(Outstanding as on 31st March)

40.00 40.00 o.o3% 176.51 77 6.6L 0.78%

Loans & Advances

Taken(O utstanding as on 31st
March)

17734.00 t7734.00 19775.82 29.0O%

NIL

SFI

:

EL

Z
0R 22-A

830

18.00% t97L5.82

Note 36A (V)

Unhedged loreign currency exposure NBFCS shall disclose details oI its unhedged foteign curency exposures. FuftheL it sholl also
disclose their policies to monage currency induced risk.
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Note 36 C) Disclosure ot complalnts
1) Summary infotmation on complaints received by the NBFCS from custome's and from lhe Ofrices ol Ombudsman

Sr. No Currenl Year

Complainl€ r€c€iv€d by lh6 NBFC lrorn ils cuslomers

1 Number of complainls p€nding al b€ginning of lhe year

2 Number of complaints received durin0lhe year tt .11

3 Number of complainls disposod during lheyeer I
31 ol which, number of complaints reircled byth6 NBFC

Number ot complainls p€nding al lho snd oflhe ysar

Maintainable complainls .eceived by lhe NBFC from Olfice of Ombudsman

Number of msinlaingbl6 complainls r€coiv€d bylh6 NBFC from office of
Ombudsman

I 7

Of All, numbe, of complainls resolved in favour of lh€ NBFC by Of,ice of

52
OlrJl. numb6r ofcompbinls r€sohed lhrough
conc ilial bn/m6dialiory'advbori6s issued by Oflice of Ombodsman

I

53 Of All. number o{ complainls r€solved afler pasEing of Awards by Office of
Ombudsmen againsl lhe NBFC I

6. Number of Awards unimplemenled wilhin tho slipulaled time (olher lhan
lhose appeal€d)

Fhlnci.lco(p.rr.s 2018) andco\sed (nrnt,l. anbn ol !! sci.ru
'lrlhdlonly b. lppac.tlb 1oNBfCS *ich rr. hctrd.d uner,h. R.srw &r* - l'nlgrt d olrlbld.mln S.hqn..2021

tofc fecetved lhe NBFcs frcm customers

2 Aficttty in opEtoo ot *cd t 4 Re.ol,Ery Aeenb/ t @t

6 Lety ol charyc. wt put ptut
nalcel qce$t@ .hoNet/

7 ltdt.btetE. oldt

e F&r{rs ic, cus&r,ftrs v&,tirc lhe oficd xthceice lo qetd tbrt wottitg hotrts d.

Grounds of complaints, (1.e. complaints relating to) Number ol complaints
pending at the beglnning
ot the year

Number ol complainls
received durlng the

o/. increase/ decrease ln
the number ot

complalnts received
over the previous year

Number ol
complalnts

pendlng al the
end ot the year

ot All, number
of complalnts

pendlng b€yond
30 days

1 2 3 4 65

Currenl Year
Levy ol chargeswilhoul prior nolice/ excessive cha,gest/ forecl6ure charges 0

Slafl Behaviot

OifficLrlly in operalion of accounls

Others
Total ll 0

Lew ofcharqes !,vilhoul orior nolic6/ excessive charoes/ for€closure charoes 0 I

SlaftBehsvior 0

Oiflioully in operation ol accounls i

Olhers
Tolal I
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22.A

1S Ft

s&

m

.S

t

fft lgtd Oteods al cmptahts dNen bebw Ete tndEalve Mry

ll



Note 37: DiBclosurc under Section 22 of The Micro, Sm.ll and Medi!m Enterprber Development Act, 2006

Particulars
tu at 31st Mar 2025

Amount (R5. ln lakhs)
As at 3l5t Mar 2024

Amounl (R5, ln lakhs)
The principal amount and th€ inter*t due thereon (to be shown separately)
remaining unpaid to any supplier as at the end of each accounting year

Principal- 31.22

lnterest Due- Nil

Principal - 44.08

lnterest Due - Nil

NIL
The amount of interest paid by the buyer in terms of section 16, alonS with the
amount ofthe payment made to the supplier bevond the appointed day

durint each accounting vear

NIL

The a mount of interest due and payable for the period of delav in making
payment (which have been paid but beyond the appoanted d.y during the

vear) but without adding the interest specified under this act

NIL NL

The amount of interest accrued and remaining unpaid at the end of each

accountirE year NIL NIL

The amount offirrther interest remaining due and payable even in the
succeeding yea6, untilsuch date when the interest dues as above are actually
paid to the small enterprisq for the purpose of disallowance as a deductible
expenditure under Section 23

NIL NIL

t,tD\G
co6ti 830
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Note 39: Financial Ratios Mar'25 Mar'24

a) Capital to risk-weiehted ratio(CRAR) 27.M% 28.24%

Pa rticu la rs

Amount
(Rs in Lakhs)

Amount
(Rs in Lakhs)

As at 31st Mar 2025
As at 31st Mar

2024

Tier 1 Capital 35,223.O9 27,409.75
Tier 2 Capital 170.L9 73t.34
Total Regulatory Capital 35,393.28 27,541.08
Aggregate Risk Weighted Assets L,28,98L.94 97,523.76
Tier l Ca pital Ratio 27.3t% 28.t7%
Tier 2 Capital Ratio o.73% o.L3%
Capital to risk-weighted asset Ratio 28.24%

b) Uquidity Coverage ratio
It is not mandated to be complied with by non-deposit taking NBFCs having asset size below {5,000 crore
Therefore, same is not applicable to the company for FY 2024-25.

4-.--

27.44%
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The tax charge shown in the statement of profit and loss differs from the tax charge that would apply if all profits had

been charged at lndia corporate tax rate. A reconciliation between the tax expense and the accounting profit
multiplied by lndia's domestic tax rate forthe years ended 31 March 2025 and 3L March 2024 is, as follows:

.ln lokhs

Note 41: Details of Loan, not in default, transferred through Assignment

Particulars FY 2024-25 FY 2023-24

3,959.01Accou nting profit before tax 7 ,576.29

?5.L68% 25.768%Applicable tax rate

Computed tax expense 995.40

Tax effect of:
Exem pted income
Non deductible items 30.90 41.65
Short / (Excess) provision for tax relating to prior years (23.05)

44.02 (s8.oo)
Others (111.7 0) (s1.38)

Tax expenses recognised in the statement of Profit & 1,870.02 905.61
Effective tax rate 24.58% 22.87%

Particulars Year Ended March 31, 2025 Year Ended March 31, 2024

Aggregate principal outstanding of loans transferred
(Rs. in La khs) 22,499.67 1.4,496.90

Weighted average residual maturity (in months) 5.83 5.46

Weighted average holding period (in months) 4.76 5.55
Average retention of beneJiciaT economic in
(MRR) (%)

te rest

rc.00% 1.0.00%

Average coverage of tangible security (%) L52.7 2% L47 .29%

Rating wise distribution of loans transferred Un rated

* This note refers to Para-86 of Master Direction - Reserve Bank of lndia (Transfer of Loan Exposures) Directions,
2021. During the Financial Year ended on 31st March 2025, the company have done three Direct Assignment
tra nsactions to tra nsfer its loa n assets. The com pa ny have co mp lied with the accou nting treatment as given u nder
lnd AS 109 and also to RBI guidelines regarding Minimum Retention Ratio (MRR) and Minimum Holding Period (MHP)

and other extant regulations governing the same

o

Note 40: Reconciliation of the Total Tax Charse:

1,906.80

Deferred Tax

Unrated
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42.2 Disclosure as perMaster Ohection - Reserve Bank ol lndia (Trensfer of l-oan Exposures) Oirectlons, 2021dated September 24 2021

Detaik of transfer th rough asgignment in respect of loan not in default:

The Company has entered into a direct as6gnment arrantement with an NBFC during the year and the disclosure of the detaib of loans transferred

through assignment in respect of loans nol in default durinS the year as per the above Master Direction is gi\,,en below

Amount in Lakhs

Particulars As at March 31, 2025 As at Msrch 31,2024

Count of loans accounts assigned 35,251 20,098

Amount of Ioan accounts assi8ned 22,499.67 74,496.90

Weighted average maturity (in months) 5.83 5.46

Weighted average holding period (in months) 4.76 5.55

Retention of beneficial economic ihterest to.o0% 10.000/o

Coverage of tangible security L47 .29/"
Rating wise distribution of ratd loans Unrated Unrated

a Detail of stresred loans acqui.ed during the year:

Particulals From ARCs Frcm scheduled commercial bank5

No. o, Accounts N Nrl

Aggregate principal outstanding of loans transferred N N

Weighted average regidualtenor ofthe loans transferred N N

AggreSate consideration (lncluding interest ac(,ued) Nil Nil

For the Year ended March 31, 2024

Particulars From Scheduled commercial bank5
No, of Accounts Nil Nil
Aggregate principal outstanding of loans transferred Nit

weighted averaSe residualtenor ofthe loans transferred N Nil
Aggregate consideralion {lncluding interest accrued) Nil Nit

9j
= 8E830
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Note 43:-

A Funding Concentration based on significant counterparty (both deposits and borrowings)
Amount in lakhs

Top 10 large deposits (amount in Rs. Lakh and % ofTotal Depc NOTAPPLICABLE

Top 10 Borrowings
Amount in lakhs

D Funding Concentration based on significant instrument/product

B

c

As at March 3L, 2025 As at March 31,2024
Number of Signif icant Counterparties 3.00 2.OO

Amount (t Lakhs) 55,027.82 23,237.53
Percentage of funding concentration to total deposits 54.t4% 34.40%

Percentage of funding concentration to total liabilities so.s8% 32.24%

Particulars As at March 3t,2025 As at March 3L,2024
Total amount of Top 10 borrowings 85,774.66 4t,674.42
% of total borrowings 85.38% 61.61%

As at March 3L,2O25 As at March 3t,2024
Name of the instrument/prod uct /" ol Total /" of fotal
Term Loan 56759.18 68.23% 28t21,.77 59.64%

WCDL 20.29% 7947.99 1,6.87%

FCN B/FCN R L4.22%

OD 1.1..49% 4351.14 9.23%

2-A
sc0
sEc

Disclosures required as per Reserve Bank of lndia Circular No RBI/2O19-20/98/DOR.NBFC (PD) CC.No.322/

22.tO.7OO/2079-20 dated November 04, 2019

Amount in lakhs

Ct
)il
:)//

Particulars

L6878
6700

9556.37



Note 43
E lnstitutional set-up for liquidity risk management

The Board of Directors has the overall responsibility for establishing the risk management framework of the Company.

The Board decides the liquidity risk tolera nce/limits and, accordingly, lays down strategies, policies and procedures for
the management of liquidity risk. The Company has instituted a Risk Management Committee. which reports to the
Board, and is responsible for evaluating the overall risks faced by the Company including liquidity risk. The Asset-

Liability Committee (ALCO) of the Company, consisting of the Company's Senior Management and Members of the
Board, is responsible for ensuring adherence to the risk tole ra nce/limits as well as implementing the liquidity risk

management strategy of the Company. The Company has also constituted Asset-Liability Management (ALM) Support

Group at the execution level, which is responsible for analysing, monitoring and reporting the liquidity risk profile to
the ALCO

Note 44:- Disclosure on Resolution Framework 2.0 implemented in terms of RBI notification no. RBI/2020-2LlLG DOR. NO.

BP.BCl3l2t.O4.O48l2O20-2L dated August 6,2O2O and RBtl202L-22l3LlDOR.ST.REC.LLI2L.O4.O4A|2OZt-22 dated May 05, 2021.

Type of borrower

Exposure to accounts
classified as Standard
consequent to
implementation of
resolution plan as on
March31-,2024

Of (A), aggregate
debt that slipped
into NPA during
the year

Of (Af amount written
off during the year

Of (A) amount paid

by the borrowers
during the year

Exposure to accounts

classified as Standard
consequent to
implementation of
resolution plan as on
March 31,2025

Personal Loans

Corporate pe rsons +

Of which MSMEs

Othe rs h.\.@
Total /,*Y \g\

TOR w



SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

A. Easis of Preparation of Financial Statements

These financial statements are prepared in accordance with lndian Accounting Standard

(lndAS), under the historical cost convention on the accrual basis except for certain financial

instruments which are measured at fair values and defined benefit plans which have been

measured at actuarial valuation as required by relevant lnd ASs, the provisions of the

Companies Act, 2013 ('the Act') (to the extent notified) and guidelines issued by the Securities

and Exchange Board of lndia (SEBI). The lnd AS are prescribed under Section 133 of the Act

read with Rule 3 of the Companies (lndian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 and relevant

amendment rules issued thereafter.

Accounting policies have been consistently applied except where a newly issued accounting

standard is initially adopted or a revision to an existing accounting standard requires a change

in the accounting policy hitherto in use. Due to the amendments in Schedule lll applicable to
NBFC's, the relevant changes has been made.

Functional and Presentation Currency

Amounts in the financial statements are presented in lndian Rupees in Lakh rounded off to
two decimal places as permitted by Division lll of Schedule lll of the Act, except when
othenrrise indicated.

B. Basis of Measurement

The lnd AS Financial Statements have been prepared on a going concern basis using historical
cost convention and on an accrual method of accounting, except for certain financial assets

which have been measured at fairvalue and defined benefit plans which have been measured

at actuarialvaluation as required by relevant lnd ASs.

C. Cash and Cash Equivalens

Cash and cash equivalents in the balance sheet comprise cash at banks and on hand and short-
term deposits with an original maturity of three months or less, which are subject to an
insignificant risk of changes in value in accordance with IND AS 7. For the purpose of the
statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents consist of cash and short-term deposits,
as defined above.

D. Use of Estimates

The preparation of financial statements requires estimates and assumptions to be made that
affect the reported amount of assets and liabilities on the date of the financial statements and

during the reporting period. Differencethe reported amount of revenugs a

-1
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between the actual results and estimates are recognized in the period in which the results are
known/materialized.

E, Plant and Equipment

The items of Plant & equipment are measured at cost less any accumulated depreciation and
any accumulated impairment losses. The cost ofan item of property, plant and equipment are

stated at cost including recoverable taxes and includes amounts added on revaluation (ifany),
less accumulated depreciation and impairment loss, ifany. All costs, including financing costs,
attributable to the fixed assets are capitalized,
The Company has opted to measure all its property, plant and equipment and intangible
assets at the Previous GAAP (IGAAP) carrying amount as its deemed cost as on the date of
transition to IND As 16.

F. Depreciation

G. Related Party Transactions

All related party transactions were entered at arms' length basis and in the ordinary course of
business. The details of related party transactions as required under the Companies Act, 2013
are disclosed in notes to accounts forming part of financial statement.

H. Events after the Reporting date

Where events occurring after the balance sheet date provide evidence of conditions that
existed at the end of the reporting period, the impact of such events is adjusted within the
financial statements. Otherwise, events after the balance sheet date of material size or nature
are only disclosed.

l. Revenue Recognition

Recognition of lnterest lncome:

The Company recognises interest income by applying the effective interest rate (ElR) to the
gross carrying amount of a financial asset except for purchased or originated credit-impaired
financial assets and other credit-impaired financial assets. For purchased or originated credit-
impaired financial assets, the Company a it-adjusted interest rate to

(t.
i

ft{) :-| \._--/
\W

Depreciation on fixed assets is provided to the extent ofdepreciable amount on written down
value method (WDV) in the manner prescribed in Schedule ll to the Companies Act, 2013 over
their remaining useful life on pro-rata basis.



the amortised cost of the financial asset from initial recognition. For other credit-impaired

financial assets, the Company applies effective interest rate to the amortised cost of the

financial asset in subsequent reporting periods. The effective interest rate on a financial asset

is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts throuBh the expected life of
the financial asset to the gross carrying amount of a financial asset. while estimating future

cash receipts, factors like expected behaviour and life cycle of the financial asset, probable

fluctuation in collateral value etc. are considered which has an impact on the ElR. While

calculating the effective interest rate, the Company includes all fees and points paid or

received to and from the borrowers that are an integral part of the effective interest rate,

transaction costs, and all other premiums or discounts. lnterest income on all trading assets

and financial assets required to be measured at FVTPL is recognised using the contractual

interest rate as net gain on fair value changes.

Recognition of Revenue from Sale of Goods or Services:

Revenue (other than for financial instruments within the scope of lnd AS 109) is measured at

an amount that reflects the considerations, to which an entity expects to be entitled in
exchange for transferring goods or services to customers, excluding amounts collected on

behalf of third parties.

The Company recognizes revenue from contracts with customers based on a five-step model

as set out in lnd AS 115:

Step 1: ldentii, contracts with a customer: A contract is defined as an agreement between
two or more parties that creates enforceable rights and obligations and sets out the criteria
for every contract that must be met.

Step 2: ldentiry performance obligations in the contract: A performance obliSation is a

promise in a contract with a customer to transfer a good or service to the customer.

Step 3: Determine the transaction price: The transaction price is the amount of consideration
to which the Company expects to be entitled in exchange for transferring promised goods or
services to a customer, excluding amounts collected on behalf of third parties.

Step 4: Allocate the transaction price to the performance obligations in the contract: For

contracts that have more than one performance obligation, the Company allocates the
transaction price to each performance obligation in an amount that depicts the amount of
consideration to which the Company expects to be entitled in exchange for satisfying each

performance obligation.

Step 5: Recognize revenue when (or as) the Company satisfies a performance obligation.

Revenue from contracts with customers for rendering services is recognized at a point in time
when performance obligation is satisfied.

Recognition of Dividend lncome:

Dividend income (including from FVOCI investments) is recognized when the Company's right
to receive the payment is established. This is established when it is probable that the
economic benefits associated with the divide to the entity and the amount of the

2^
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dividend can be measured reliably.

J. Employee Benefits

Gratuity Liability as on 31st March 2025 has been provided for on basis of actuarial valuation
basis Projected unit credit method in accordance with IND AS-19.

Leave encashment which are short term compensated absences are charged to profit and loss

account of the year in which it is due.

K. Borrowing Costs

L. Provision for Current and Deferred Tax

Current Tax:

Current tax is the amount of income taxes payable in respect of taxable profit for a period.

Taxable profit differs from'profit before tax'as reported in the Statement of Profit and Loss

because of items of income or expense that are taxable or deductible in other years and items
that are never taxable or deductible in accordance with applicable tax laws.

The tax rates and tax laws used to compute the amount are those that are enacted, or
substantively enacted, by the end of reporting date in lndia where the company operates and

generates taxable income.

Current income tax relating to items recognised outside profit or loss is recognised outside
profit or loss, i.e., either in other comprehensive income or in equity.
Current tax items are recognised in correlation to the underlying transaction either in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity.

Management periodically evaluates positions taken in the tax returns with respect to
situations in which applicable tax regulations are subject to interpretation and establishes

.-{

provisions where appropriate.
SF

The entity makes contributions to statutory provident funds in accordance with Employees
Provident Fund and Miscellaneous Provisions Act, 1952 and Employee State lnsurance Act,
1948. Provident Fund and ESI are defined contribution schemes and the contributions are
charged to the profit and loss account of the year when the contributions to the respective
fund is due. There are no other obligations other than the contribution payable to the fund.

As per IND AS 23 Borrowing costs that are attributable to the acquisition or construction of
qualifying assets (if any) are capitalized as part of the cost of such assets. A qualifoing asset is

one that necessarily takes substantial period of time to get ready for its intended use. All other
borrowing costs are charged to Profit and Loss account.

q



Deferred Tax:

Deferred tax is recognized for temporary differences at the reporting date between the tax
values of assets and liabilities used in calculating taxable profit and their amounts shown in
the financial statements for financial reporting.

Deferred tax assets are recognized for all deductible temporary differences, carry forward of
unused tax credits, and unused tax losses. Deferred tax assets are recognized to the extent
that it is likely taxable profit will be available to use these deductible temporary differences
and unused tax items, except:

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at each reporting date and adjusted if
it's no longer probable that enough taxable profit will be available to use all or part of the
deferred tax asset. Unrecognized deferred tax assets are reassessed at each reporting date
and recognized if it becomes probable future taxable profits will allow the deferred tax asset
to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates expected to apply in the year
when the asset is realized or the liability settled, using tax rates (and tax laws) in place or
substantially enacted at the reporting date.

Deferred tax relating to items recognized outside profit or loss is recognized outside profit or
loss, either in other comprehensive income or directly in equity.

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset if there is a legally enforceable right
to set off current tax assets against current tax liabilities and the deferred taxes relate to the
same taxable entity and the same tax authority.

sFl
:6

Deferred tax liabilities are recognized for alltaxable temporary differencet except:

1. When the deferred tax liability comes from the first time goodwill, or an asset or liability,
is recognized in a transaction that isn't a business combination, and at the time of the
transaction, it doesn't affect accounting profit or taxable proflt or loss.

2. For taxable temporary differences related to investments in subsidiaries, when the timing
of the reversal of these differences can be controlled and it's likely that the temporary
differences won't reverse in the near future.

1. When the deferred tax asset from a deductible temporary difference comes from the first
recognition of an asset or liability in a transaction that is not a business combination, and at
the time ofthe transaction, it doesn't affect accounting profit or taxable profit or loss.

2. For deductible temporary differences related to investments in subsidiaries, associates, and
joint ventures, deferred tax assets are recognized only if it's probable the temporary
differences will reverse in the foreseeable future and taxable profit will be available to use

them.

Deferred tax items are recognized in correlation with the underlying transaction either in
other comprehensive income or directly in equity.

(.'
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M. Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contin8ent Assets

Provisions involving substantial degree of estimation in measurement are recognized when

there is a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of a past event and it is probable

that there will be an outflow of resources.

Contingent liabilities are not recognized but disclosed in the financial statements. A

contingent asset is neither recognized nor disclosed in the financial statements'

N. Classification of Current / Non-Current Assets

All assets and liabilities are presented as Current or Non-current as per the Company's normal

operating cycle and other criteria set out in Schedule lll to The Companies Act, 2013' Based

on the nature of products and the time between the acquisition of assets for processing and

their realization, the Company has assumed its operating cycle as 12 months for the purpose

of Current / Noncurrent classification of assets and liabilities.

O, Leases

The Company has complied with IND AS 116 "Leases" applicable from l April 2019, and

considered all material lease contracts existing on April 1, 2019.
The Company has accounted for its short term leases and low value assets in accordance with
para 6 of the IND AS. We have considered as short term lease considering the fact that lease

can be terminated on short term notice from either side.

P. FinancialAssets

lnitial recotnition and measurement: AII financial assets are recognised initially at fair value
when the Company becomes party to the contractual provisions ofthe financial asset. ln case

of financial assets which are not recorded at fair value through profit or loss, transaction costs
that are directly attributable to the acquisition or issue of the financial assets, are adjusted to
the fair value on initial recognition.

Subsequent measurement: The Company classifies its financial assets into various
measurement categories. The classification depends on the contractual terms of the financial
assets' cash flows and the Company's business model for managing financial assets.

Financial assets measured at amortised cost: A financial asset is measured at amortised cost
if it is held within a business model whose objective is to hold the asset in order to collect
contractual cash flows and the contractual terms of the Financial Asset give rise on specified
dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest on the principal amount
outstanding.

Financial assets measured at fair value through prehensive income (FVOCI): A
s model whose objective is

2;
9.830

cR,22.A

financial asset is measured at FVOCI if it is held \
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achieved by both collecting contractualcash flows and selling financialassets and contractual
terms of financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of
principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding

Financial assets measured at fair value through profrt or loss (FVTPL): A financial asset which
is not classified in any of the above cateBories are measured at FVTPL.

lmpairment offinancial assets: ln accordance with lnd AS 109, the Company uses 'Expected

Credit Loss' model (ECL), for evaluating impairment of financial assets other than those
measured at fair value through profit or loss.

Expected Credit toss (ECL) Policy: Expected Credit Loss, at each reporting date, is measured

through a loss allowance for a financial asset:

. At an amount equal to the lifetime expected credit losses if the credit risk on that financial
lnstrument has increased significantly since initial recognition.

Lifetime expected credit losses means expected credit losses that result from all possible

default events over the expected life of a financial asset. 12-month expected credit losses

means the portion of Lifetime ECL that represent the ECLS that result from default events on
financial assets that are possible within 12 months after the reporting date.

The Company performs an assessment, at the end of each reporting period, of whether a

financial assets credit risk has increased significantly since initial recognition. When making
the assessment, the change in the risk of a default occurring over the expected life of the
financial lnstrument is used instead of the change in the amount of expected credit losses.

Based on the above process, the Company categorizes its loans into three states as
described below:

For non-impaired financial assets:

Stage 1 is comprised of all non-impaired financial assets which have not experienced a

significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition. When loans are first recognised, the
company recognizes an allowance based on 12-month ECL. Stage 1 loans includes those loans
where there is no significant increase in credit risk observed and also includes facilities where
the credit risk has been improved and the loan has been reclassified from stage 2. ln assessing
whether credit risk has increased significantly, the Company compares the risk of a default
occurring on the financial asset as at the reporting date with the risk of a default occurring on
the financial asset as at the date of initial recognition.

Stage 2 is comprised of all non-impaired financial assets which have experienced a significant
increase in credit risk since initial recognition. The Company recognises lifetime ECL for stage
2 financial assets. ln subsequent reporting periods, if the credit risk ofthe financial instrument
improves such that there is no longer a significant increase in credit risk since initial
recognition, then entities will revert to recognizint 12 months ECL provision. The Company
considers a significant increase in credit risk since initi ition in all cases when the

ue after the due date on

)

financial asset is more than 30 days past due but up

g
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. At an amount equal to 12-month expected credit losses, if the credit risk on a financial
lnstrument has not increased significantly since initial recognition.



For impaired financial assets:

The company considers a financial instrument as defaulted and therefore Sta8e 3 (Credit

lmpaired) for Expected credit Loss (EcL) calculations in all cases when the loan becomes 90

days past due after the due date on its contractual payments.

Estimation of Expected Credit Loss: The mechanics of the ECL calculations are outlined below

and the key elements are as follows:

Exposure at Default (EADI - The Exposure at Default is an estimate ofthe exposure at a future
default date, considering expected changes in the exposure after the reporting date, including
repayments of principal and interest, whether scheduled by contract or otherwise, expected

drawdowns on committed facilities, and accrued interest from missed payments.

Probability of Default (PD)

Loss Given Default (LGD)

LGD isthe estimated loss that the Company mi8ht bear ifthe borrower defaults. The Company
determines its recovery by analysing the recovery trends, collateral value and expected
proceeds from sale of asset.

Portfolio As at March 2025
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3

Gold Loans

Other Loans- Secured 4%

4% 70% \ooyo

Portfolio As at March 2025

Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3

Gold Loans 7% 7%

Other Loans- Secured 20% 20% 2OYo

Other Loans- lJnsecured LOO% 1@% too%

?.
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its contractual payments and the company recognises a life time ECL provision on such Stage

2 assets.

Financial assets are classified as Stage 3 when there is objective evidence of impairment as a

result of one or more loss events that have occurred after initial recognition with a negative

impact on the estimated future cash flows of a loan or a portfolio of loans. The Company

recognises lifetime ECL for impaired financial assets.

Probability of Default (PD) - The Probability of Default is an estimate of the likelihood of
default over a given time horizon. The Company uses historical information where available
to determine PD. Considering the different products and schemes, the Company has

bifurcated its loan portfolio into various pools. For certain pools where historical information
is available, the PD is calculated considering fresh disbursal of past years. For those pools

where historical information is not available, the PD/ default rates as stated by external
reporting agencies is considered.

2% 10% IOOYo

to% too%
Other Loans- Unsecured
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When estimating ECLs on a collective basis for a group of similar assets, the Company applies

the same principles for assessing whether there has been a significant increase in credit risk

since initial recognition.

Forward looking information - While estimating the expected credit losses, the Company
reviews macro-economic developments occurring in the economy and market it operates. On

a periodic basit the Company analyses if there is any relationship between key economic
trends like GDP, unemployment rates, benchmark rates set by the Reserve Bank of lndia,

inflation etc. with the estimate of PD, LGD determined by the Company based on its internal

data. while the internal estimates of PD, LGD rates by the Company may not be always

reflective of such relationships, temporary overlays, if any, are embedded in the methodology
to reflect such macro-economic trends reasonably

To mitigate its credit risk on financial assets, the Company seeks to use collateral, where
possible. The collateral comes primarily in the form of gold pledged as security against the
gold loan given. However, the fair value of collateral affects the calculation of ECL. The fair
value of the same is based on data published by various external agencies and related market
index.

Loans are written off (either partially or in full) when there is no realistic prospect of recovery.
This is generally the case when the Company determines that the borrower does not have

assets or sources of income that could generate sufficient cash flows to repay the amounts
subject to write-offs after adjusting for their collateral recovery. Any subsequent recoveries
against such loans are credited to the Statement of Profit and Loss.

Q, Statement of Cash Flows

Statement of Cash Flows are reported using the indirect method, whereby the net profit
before tax is adjusted for the effects of transactions of a non-cash nature, any deferrals or
accruals of past or future operating cash receipts or payments and item of income or expenses
associated with investing or financing cash flows. The Statement of Cash Flows from
operating, investing and financing activities of the Company are segregated.

R. Earning Per share

The basic EPS is computed by dividing the profit after tax for the year attributable to the equity
shareholders by the weighted-average number of equity shares outstanding during the year.

For the purpose of calculating diluted EPS, profit after tax for the year attributable to the
equity shareholders and the weighted-average number of equity shares outstanding during
the year are adjusted for the effects of all dilutive potential equity shares.

IS F/, \
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Note 45. Other Notes

1. Balance under Sundry Debtors, Sundry Creditors, Loans & Advances and Other Receivable and Payables are subject to
confi rmation and reconciliation.

2. Additional information pursuant to Schedule lll division lll part l& llofthe Companies Act. 2013 otherthan stated above

is either NIL or not applicabe.

3. Accou nting Policies and Notes , to 45 form integral part of Accou nts for the year ending 31{3-2025
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